Memorandum of Understanding

July 01, 2023 through June 30, 2028



SILICON VALLEY CLEAN WATER JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY A PUBLIC ENTITY



STATIONARY ENGINEERS, LOCAL 39

INTERNATIONAL UNION OF OPERATING ENGINEERS AFL-CIO

Table of Contents

Section 1.	Recognition	5
1.1	Union Recognition	5
1.2	SVCW Recognition	5
Section 2.	Union Security	5
2.1	New Employee Orientation	6
Section 3.	Union Representative	6
Section 4.	Access to Work Locations	6
4.1	Reasonable Access	6
4.2	Solicitation	7
Section 5.	Use of SVCW Facilities.	7
5.1	Prior, Written Approval Required	7
5.2	Use of Equipment Prohibited	7
Section 6.	Bulletin Boards	7
6.1	Materials Must be Dated	7
6.2	Removal of Materials	7
6.3	Forfeiture of Privilege	7
Section 7.	Advance Notice	7
Section 8.	SVCW Rights	8
8.1	SVCW Rights	8
8.2	At-will Employment	8
Section 9.	No Discrimination	8
Section 10	D. Hours of Work - Appointments, Regular Workweek and Regular Workday	8
Section 1	1. Overtime, Call Back, Stand-by. Shift Differential and Confined Space Rescue Team	9
11.1	Overtime	9
11.2	Compensation - Overtime	9
11.3	Minimum Unit of Work	9
11.4	Call Back	9
11.5	Stand-by assignments and pay	10
11.6	Shift Differential	11
11.7	Confined Space Rescue Team	11
Section 12	2. Salaries	11
12.1	Base Wage Rates	11
12.2	Adjustments in Compensation	11
12.3	Step Increases	11

12.4	Certification Pay	12
Section	13. Health and Welfare	15
13.1	Medical	15
13.2	Section 125 Flex Plan Contributions	15
13.3	Longevity Recognition Benefit	17
13.4	Retiree Health Savings Account ("RHSA")	17
13.5	Dental	17
13.6	Life Insurance	17
13.7	Change in Employee Benefit Plans	18
Section	14. Retirement Plan	18
Section	15. Safety Boots and Protective Clothing	20
Section	16. Holidays	21
16.1	Entitlements	21
16.2	Regular Holidays	21
16.3	Floating Holidays	21
16.4	Holiday Pay	21
Section	17. Vacation	22
17.1	Vacation Benefits	22
17.2	Vacation Scheduling	22
17.3	Vacation Accumulation	24
17.4	Vacation Pay at Termination	24
Section	18. Income Protection Plan	25
18.1	Definitions	25
18.2	Continuation of Compensation	25
18.3	Accrual of Units of Benefit	26
18.4	Use of Units	26
18.5	Illness of Family Member	26
18.6	Notice	27
18.7	Health and Welfare Coverage	27
18.8	Personal Leave	27
Section	19. Leaves of Absence	27
19.1	Leave Without Pay	27
19.2	Jury Duty	27
19.3	Military Leaves of Absence	28
19.4	Leaves Pursuant to Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), California Family Rights Act (CFRA), and	2.5
•	nancy Disability Leave Act (PDL)	
10 5	Medical Certification	28

19.6Int	ermittent Use of Leave	28
19.7	Aggregate Use for Spouse	28
19.8	Definitions.	29
19.9	Industrial Disability Leave	30
19.10	Funeral Leave	30
Section 20). Personnel Files	31
Section 22	. Grievance Procedure	31
21.1	Definition	31
21.2	Initial Discussions	31
21.3	Referral to Manager	31
21.4	Adjustment Board	31
21.5	Manager	32
21.6	The Commission of Silicon Valley Clean Water	32
21.7	Pay Claim	33
21.8 Than T	Disciplinary Action for Suspension, Demotion, Reduction in Pay or Other Disciplinary Measures Less	33
Section 22	?. Outside Employment	33
Section 23	3. Miscellaneous	33
23.1	Drug/Alcohol Program	33
23.2	Non-Economic Issues	34
23.2	Layoff Discussions	34
Section 24	1. Severability of Provisions	34
24.1	Unaffected Sections Remain in Force	34
24.2	Substitute Provisions	34
Section 25	5. Past Practices and Existing Memorandum of Understanding	34
25.1	Continuance of Working Conditions	34
25.2	Memorandum of Understanding Supersedes Others	34
Section 26	5. Limited Reopener	34
Section 27	7. Effective, Operative Dates and Termination	35

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

between

SILICON VALLEY CLEAN WATER

and the

INTERNATIONAL UNION OF OPERATING ENGINEERS STATIONARY ENGINEERS LOCAL 39. AFL-CIO

This Memorandum of Understanding supersedes that Certain Memorandum of Understanding between the parties that expired June 30, 2023, pursuant to the provisions of Section 3500 et seq of the Government Code of the State of California and upon execution shall replace that Memorandum of Understanding.

The parties have met and conferred in good faith regarding wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment for the employees in said representation unit, and have freely exchanged information, opinions and proposals and have reached agreement on all matters relating to the employment conditions and employer-employee relations of such employees.

Nothing herein contained is intended to restrict, modify or amend the provisions heretofore adopted by the Commission of Silicon Valley Clean Water governing the relationship of employment.

Section 1. Recognition.

1.1 Union Recognition

International Union of Operating Engineers Stationary Local 39, AFL-CIO, hereinafter referred to as the "Union", is the recognized employee organization for the classifications listed in Section 12.

1.2 SVCW Recognition

The Manager, or any person or organization duly authorized by the Manager, is the representative of Silicon Valley Clean Water, hereinafter referred to as the "SVCW", between the SVCW and the Union.

Section 2. Union Security.

The parties hereto recognize that membership in the Union is not compulsory, that employees have the right to join, not join, maintain, or drop their membership in the Union and that neither party shall exert any pressure on or discriminate against an employee regarding such matters. In recognition of Section 8.2 of this Memorandum of Understanding, if an employee who is not paying Union Dues requests individual representation from the Union, the Union may charge the employee for the reasonable costs of such representation.

The employee's earnings must be regularly sufficient after other legal and required deductions are made to cover the amount of the dues check-off authorized. When an employee is in a non-pay status for an entire pay period, no withholding will be made to cover the pay period

from future earnings. In the case of an employee who is in a non-pay status during only part of the pay period, and the salary is not sufficient to cover the full withholding, no deduction shall be made. In this connection, all other legal and required deductions have priority over Union dues.

Monies withheld by SVCW shall be transmitted to the Treasurer of the Union at the address specified. The Union shall indemnify, defend, and hold SVCW harmless against any claims made, and against any suit instituted against SVCW on account of check-off of Union dues. In addition, the Union shall refund to SVCW any amount paid to it in error upon presentation of supporting evidence.

2.1 New Employee Orientation

(A) Unless otherwise agreed in advance, Union Business Representatives, or their designees, shall be provided up to thirty (30) minutes to attend the Silicon Valley Clean Water regularly scheduled new-employee orientations so that they may provide information about the Union and labor agreement within the first thirty (30) days.

When new employee orientations are not regularly scheduled, Silicon Valley Clean Water will notify the Union of the date and time a new employee onboarding process is scheduled and provide the Union with up to thirty (30) minutes to meet with the new employee at a later time either in person or virtually. It is further understood that SVCW will include a list of attendees at each orientation, including an email address and contact phone number if applicable.

(B) At least every one hundred twenty (120) days, Silicon Valley Clean Water shall provide the Union with a list of employees who are employed in classifications represented by the bargaining unit.

Section 3. Union Representative.

SVCW employees who are shop stewards of the Union shall be given reasonable time off with pay to attend meetings with management representatives or to be present at hearings where matters within the scope of representation or grievances are being considered. The use of official time for this purpose shall be reasonable and shall not interfere with the performance of SVCW services as determined by the Authority. Such employee representatives shall submit a written request for excused absence to their respective department heads with an information copy to the Manager at least two (2) working days prior to the scheduled meeting whenever possible. Except by mutual agreement, the number of employees excused for such purposes shall not exceed three (3).

Section 4. Access to Work Locations.

4.1 Reasonable Access

Reasonable access to employee work locations shall be granted officers of the union and their officially designated representatives for the purpose of processing grievances or contacting members of the Union concerning business within the scope of representation. Such officers or representatives shall not enter any work location without the consent of the Manager. Access shall be restricted so as not to interfere with the normal operations of the department or with established safety or security

requirements.

4.2 Solicitation

Solicitation of membership and activities concerned with the internal management of the Union, such as collecting dues, holding membership meetings, campaigning for office, conducting elections and distributing literature shall not be conducted during the working hours.

Section 5. Use of SVCW Facilities.

5.1 Prior, Written Approval Required

SVCW employees or the Union or their representatives may, with the prior approval of the Manager, be granted the use of SVCW facilities during non-work hours for meetings of SVCW employees provided space is available. All such requests shall be in writing and shall state the purpose or purposes of the meeting.

5.2 Use of Equipment Prohibited

The use of SVCW equipment other than items normally used in the conduct of business meetings, such as desks, chairs, and whiteboards is strictly prohibited, the presence of such equipment in approved SVCW facilities notwithstanding.

Section 6. Bulletin Boards.

The Union may use one of the four SVCW bulletin boards in the employee lunchroom under the following conditions:

6.1 Materials Must be Dated

All materials must be dated and officially issued or published by the Union and must identify the union that published them.

6.2 Removal of Materials

Unless special arrangements are made, materials posted will be removed thirty-one (31) days after the publication date.

6.3 Forfeiture of Privilege

If the Union does not abide by these rules, it will forfeit its right to have materials posted on SVCW bulletin boards.

Section 7. Advance Notice.

Except in cases of emergency, reasonable advance written notice shall be given the Union of any ordinance, rule, resolution or regulation directly relating to matters within the scope of representation proposed to be adopted by the Commission and the Union shall be given the opportunity to meet with such body prior to adoption. In cases of emergency when the

Commission determines that an ordinance, rule, resolution or regulation must be adopted immediately without prior notice or meeting with the Union, SVCW shall provide such notice and opportunity to meet at the earliest practical time following the adoption of such ordinance, rule, resolution or regulation.

Section 8. SVCW Rights.

8.1 SVCW Rights

Nothing herein shall be construed to restrict any legal or inherent exclusive right of SVCW with respect to matters of general legislative, contractual, or managerial policy, which include, without limitation: the exclusive right to determine the mission of SVCW, its constituent departments, divisions, or other organizational subdivisions; set standards of service; determine the procedures and standards of selection for employment and promotion of employees; direct its employees; relieve its employees from duty; maintain the efficiency of SVCW's operations; determine the methods, means and personnel by which such operations are to be conducted, including but not limited to, the contracting and subcontracting of work, the assignment of work in accordance with the requirements of SVCW, and the determination as to the type of work to be performed by such personnel; expand or contract the scope and type of its services; take all necessary actions to carry out its mission in emergencies; and exercise complete control and discretion over the organization, staffing, and the technology of conducting its operations and performing its work.

8.2 At-will Employment

Every employee shall serve at the will and pleasure of SVCW. No employee has, or may acquire, a property interest, nor any other kind of interest in, or right to, continuing employment with SVCW. Prior to discharge an employee will be provided notice of the intent to discharge and the basis thereof. Included in the notice will be an opportunity for the employee to request a meeting with the Manager prior to the termination becoming effective. Failure of the employee to request a meeting with the Manager within three workdays of receipt of the notice will result in the discharge becoming final. Employees are entitled to Union Representation at the meeting. After the meeting the Manager will issue a final written determination. The decision to discharge is not subject to the grievance procedure.

Section 9. No Discrimination.

SVCW condemns and prohibits discrimination against or harassment of an individual because of that individual's sex, race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, marital status, physical or mental disability, medical condition (cancer or genetic characteristics), political opinions or affiliations, sexual orientation, nor to the extent prohibited by applicable state or federal law, shall there be any discrimination or harassment because of age or military service.

<u>Section 10. Hours of Work - Appointments, Regular Workweek and Regular Workday.</u>

The regular workweek shall consist of forty (40) hours. Work weeks and work days may be scheduled for the convenience and efficient operation of SVCW without regard to calendar days or calendar weeks. Except when SVCW determines that urgent operational needs dictate

otherwise, SVCW will notify the Union at least seven (7) work days in advance and offer the Union an opportunity to meet within that period to discuss the planned change(s) in work schedule before implementing such change(s). In an urgent situation, SVCW may implement the change before giving such notice, but shall afford the Union an opportunity to meet to discuss the change as soon thereafter as is reasonably practicable.

<u>Section 11. Overtime, Call Back, Stand-by. Shift Differential and Confined Space Rescue Team.</u>

11.1 Overtime

(A) Over Shift

General employees shall receive overtime pay for any authorized work performed in excess of the employee's daily number of scheduled hours. The daily number of hours shall be all work performed during a scheduled shift and will not include any non-worked hours, (e.g, any paid or unpaid leaves taken during the scheduled shift.)

(B) <u>Authorization</u>

All overtime worked must be approved in advance by the Manager or their designated representative except when such work is required in an emergency in order to prevent loss of life, injury or damage to person or property or to ensure the proper operation of SVCW's facilities.

(C) Policy

It is the policy of SVCW that overtime work shall be discouraged. However, in the case of an emergency, or whenever the public interest or necessity requires, the Manager may require any general employee to perform overtime work.

11.2 Compensation - Overtime

Compensation for overtime work shall be in an amount equal to one and one-half times the applicable hourly rate of pay of the employee entitled to such compensation times the number of hours of overtime worked. Notwithstanding the foregoing, and upon request of the employee, the Manager may, at the Manager's discretion, approve compensatory time off with pay in advance of the overtime being worked for a period equal to one and one-half (1½) times the amount of time during which such overtime work was performed, in lieu of overtime pay. An employee may accrue compensatory time off up to a maximum of sixty (60) hours of time off. The unused compensatory time off balances of all employees shall be paid off in the last pay period ended in each fiscal year.

11.3 Minimum Unit of Work

The smallest unit of working time which may be credited as overtime shall be onequarter hour.

11.4 Call Back

(A) If an employee is called back to work, they shall perform a minimum of two (2) hours work; provided, that if two (2) hours work is not performed, never-SVCW-SE L39 MOU 2023-2028 the-less they shall be compensated for a minimum of two (2) hours at two times (2X) their regular straight-time rate of pay. This provision does not apply to instances in which the employee is called to report before their regular starting time and works from the time they report to their regular starting time. Call back pay shall be figured on a portal-to-portal (e.g. home to worksite) basis, and shall be administered in accordance with SVCW's Administrative Policy No. 2005-01, a copy of which is attached hereto as EXHIBIT A.

(B) If an employee is called to complete a task which can be accomplished remotely, such employee shall be compensated at time and one-half (1 ½) for the actual time it takes to perform the task or a minimum of one (1) hour, whichever is greater.

11.5 Stand-by assignments and pay

- (A) Subject to the requirements of this subsection 11.5, SVCW may assign employees to stand-by status outside regular work hours. While on stand-by status, the affected employee shall be available by cell phone or other such communication device at all times. Such employee(s) shall refrain from using alcohol or non-prescribed controlled substances while on stand-by status and remain able to report to work within one (1) hour, if called to report to an SVCW facility for duty. If the employee's residence is more than one (1) hour away from their normal SVCW report location, SVCW will extend this one (1) hour period by a reasonable period as determined by SVCW to accommodate the additional necessary travel time. An employee on stand-by status may otherwise freely use such time for their personal activities. When the employee receives and responds to the call to work from standby status stand-by status ends and SVCW shall thereafter compensate the employee at their base hourly rate or, if applicable, the overtime rate of one and one-half (1½) times their regular rate of pay, for all hours worked after such call until they are authorized to terminate the work for which they were called to work.
- (B) For non-worked hours spent on stand-by status on a day within the employee's regularly scheduled work week SVCW shall pay the employee one hundred dollars (\$100).
- (C) For each twenty-four (24) hours spent on stand-by status on the employee's regularly scheduled day(s) off or on fixed SVCW holidays SVCW shall pay the employee two hundred dollars (\$200).
- (D) Payments under paragraphs (B) or (C) of this subsection shall be prorated for half or less of said stand-by periods. Time in stand-by status is not time worked for pay purposes. Before assigning employees to stand-by on a regular or ongoing basis, SVCW will notify and offer the Union the opportunity to meet and confer over the manner in which stand- by duty is distributed among the employees qualified to perform duties for which the stand by status is assigned. This does not preclude SVCW from assigning an employee to stand-by status on an incidental basis during an emergency or when unusual operational circumstances necessitate such an assignment.

11.6 Shift Differential

An employee who is assigned to work a swing shift or a night shift shall receive a shift differential of seventy dollars (\$70) per shift. Shift differential is only applicable when employees are regularly assigned and work a swing shift or a night shift. If an Operator is assigned as a single person on shift and works that shift, the Operator will be paid an additional fifteen dollars (\$15) differential for swing shift (total differential of eighty-five dollars (\$85) and an additional thirty dollars (\$30) differential for night/graveyard shift (total differential of one-hundred dollars (\$100) for all hours worked alone.

11.7 Confined Space Rescue Team

An employee who is assigned to the Confined Space Rescue Team shall receive a premium of twenty-five dollars (\$25) per pay period.

Section 12. Salaries.

12.1 Base Wage Rates

Subject to the terms of subsection 12.4, <u>Certification Pay</u>, employees in the bargaining unit shall be compensated in accordance with the base hourly wage rate class zero (Class 0) set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto. Said schedules reflect a four and one-half percent (4.5%) base wage rate increase for all represented classifications effective the first pay period of July 2023 and July 2024. Effective the first pay period of July 2025, all represented classifications shall receive a four percent (4%) base wage increase, and effective the first pay period of July 2026 and July 2027, all represented classifications shall receive a three and one-half percent (3.5%) base wage rate increase.

12.2 Adjustments in Compensation

Increases within salary ranges established by the Commission shall be administered as follows:

(A) Starting Rate

Initial appointments shall normally be made at the minimum salary for the classification; provided, however, that the Manager may make an initial appointment at any step or rate of pay above the minimum when justified by reason of:

- (1) the difficulty of locating qualified personnel or,
- (2) an appointee's experience, education, knowledge of the particular duties required, personal fitness for the position, and
- (3) such other criteria as may reasonably be related to preferential consideration on the basis of merit.
- (B) The Manager's decision shall be final.

12.3 Step Increases

(A) No increase in salary shall be automatic merely upon completion of a specified

- period of service. All increases shall be based on merit as established by record of the employee's performance and shall require recommendation of the Department Manager and approval by the Manager.
- (B) An employee may be eligible for a salary adjustment to the next higher step or rate above the initial or any other step or rate from which advancement is proposed normally upon completion of a minimum period of one (1) year at such lower step or rate, and upon consideration of such employee's performance of duties, experience, education, personal fitness for the position, and other criteria reasonably related to awarding increased compensation.

12.4 Certification Pay

When an employee completes certification requirements or other approved training as set forth in the table below that are at a higher level than specified for his or her current classification description, or if the employee completes other training that is approved in advance by the SVCW Manager and that, in the Manager's judgment, provides comparable enhancement of job related skills, the employee will qualify for certification pay. Employees who have not qualified for certification pay shall be paid according to the "CLASS 0" salary schedule set forth in Exhibit B of this Memorandum of Understanding. Employees who have qualified for certification pay shall be paid according to the "CLASS 1" salary schedule set forth in Exhibit B of this Memorandum of Understanding.

OPERATIONS DIVISION

Position	SWRCB Operator Certification		CWEA Certified Mechanical Technologist or Laboratory Analyst		Other Programs that must be Approved by SVCW Manager
Certified Operator (A-G)	Operator Certification at a grade level higher than the minimum required for their current job description requirement	or	Grade I	or	Verifiable Apprenticeships, certification programs, special SVCW-designed programs, etc
Certified Senior Operator	Operator Certification at a grade level higher than the minimum required for their current merit pay step	or	Grade II	or	Actual Apprenticeships, certification programs, special SVCW-designed programs, etc
Utility Worker	Pass Grade 1 Exam or Enrollment in OIT Program	or	Grade I	or	Actual Apprenticeships, certification programs, special SVCW-designed programs, etc

MAINTENANCE DIVISION

Docition	CWEA Certified	SWRCB Operator	Other Programs
Position	Mechanical	Certification	Approved by SVCW

	Technologist/ Electrician/ Instrumentation				Manager
Plant Mechanic	Grade II	or	Grade I	or	Actual Apprenticeships, certification programs, special SVCW- designed programs, etc
Senior Plant Mechanic	Grade III	or	Grade II	or	Completion of an Apprenticeship Program recognized by the CA Division of Apprenticeship Standards, certification programs, special SVCW-designed programs, etc
Planner/ Scheduler Assistant	Grade I	or	Grade I	or	Actual Apprenticeships, certification programs, special SVCW- designed programs, etc
Procurement Materials Specialist (A-D)	Grade I	or	Grade I	or	Actual Apprenticeships, certification programs, special SVCW- designed programs, etc
Procurement Materials Specialist (E)	Grade I	or	Grade I	or	Actual Apprenticeships, certification programs, special SVCW- designed programs, etc

LABORATORY DIVISION

Position	CWEA Certified Laboratory Analyst		CWEA Certified Environmental Compliance Inspector		Other Programs Approved by SVCW Manager
Laboratory Analyst I (A- D)	CWEA Certification at a grade level higher than the minimum required for their current merit pay step	or	Grade I	or	Actual Apprenticeships, certification programs, special SVCW-designed programs, etc
Laboratory	CWEA Certification	or	Grade I	or	Completion of an

Analyst I (E)	at a grade level higher than the minimum required for their current merit pay step				Apprenticeship Program recognized by the CA Division of Apprenticeship Standards, certification programs, special
					SVCW-designed programs, etc
Laboratory Analyst II (A- D)	CWEA Certification at a grade level higher than the minimum required for their current merit pay step	or	Grade I	or	Actual Apprenticeships, certification programs, special SVCW-designed programs, etc
Laboratory Analyst II (E)	CWEA Certification at a grade level higher than the minimum required for their current merit pay step	or	Grade II	or	Actual Apprenticeships, certification programs, special SVCW-designed programs, etc
Senior Laboratory Analyst	CWEA Certification at a grade level higher than the minimum required for their current merit pay step	or	Grade II	or	Actual Apprenticeships, certification programs, special SVCW-designed programs, etc

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

Position	CWEA Certified Environmental Compliance Inspector		CWEA Certified Laboratory Analyst		Other Programs Approved by SVCW Manager
Environmental Compliance Inspector (A-D)	CWEA Certification at a grade level higher than the minimum required for their current merit pay step	or	Grade I	or	Actual Apprenticeships, certification programs, special SVCW-designed programs, etc
Environmental Compliance Inspector (E)	CWEA Certification at a grade level higher than the minimum required for their current merit pay step	or	Grade II	or	Actual Apprenticeships, certification programs, special SVCW-designed programs, etc
Senior Environmental Compliance Inspector (A-E)	CWEA Certification at a grade level higher than the minimum required for their current	or	Grade II	or	Actual Apprenticeships, certification programs, special SVCW-designed

	merit pay step and Daily Laboratory Analysis Additional Non-Core duties				programs, etc
Pollution Prevention Specialist (A-D)	Grade I	or	Grade I	or	Actual Apprenticeships, certification programs, special SVCW-designed programs, etc
Pollution Prevention Specialist (E)	Grade II	or	Grade II	or	Actual Apprenticeships, certification programs, special SVCW-designed programs, etc

Section 13. Health and Welfare

13.1 Medical

Employees in the bargaining unit will be required to enroll in an approved California Public Employees' Retirement System ("PERS") Health Benefits Plan. SVCW will pay on behalf of each such employee and on behalf of retirees from the bargaining unit, in either case who remain eligible for coverage and irrespective of the specific provider of health insurance coverage selected by the employee from those offered under the PERS Health Benefits Plan, an amount equal to the minimum monthly employer contribution required by law (currently one hundred fifty-one dollars (\$151) per month). For active employees any remaining premium shall be paid by the employee through their section 125 Plan benefit (described below) or by payroll deduction or a combination thereof. Any remaining premium not otherwise paid for retirees by SVCW under the terms set forth in this section 13 will be paid by deduction from the retiree's retirement check.

13.2 Section 125 Flex Plan Contributions

- (A) SVCW will provide a Flexible Benefits plan, subject to the requirements and availability of Internal Revenue Code Section 125, allowing employees to use pretax compensation for CalPERS Health Benefits Plan medical premiums for their own coverage and that of eligible dependents, eligible dependent care expenses (through a dependent care account), eligible uninsured medical expenses (through a medical spending account), dental insurance premiums, or a combination thereof. For purposes of this Section 13.2, a "dependent" shall be defined as a person qualifying as such pursuant to the definition thereof under the CalPERS Health Benefits Plan selected by the employee, except that the definition of an eligible "dependent" under SVCW's dental plan will apply for purposes of dental plan participation.
- (B) The SVCW shall contribute each month the amounts listed below, based on the employee's level of medical plan enrollment, to each active employee's section 125 Flex Plan account.

Level of Medical Plan Enrollment	Amount of Monthly SVCW Contribution
Employee Only	\$913.74 minus PEMHCA minimum
Employee + One	\$1,827.48 minus PEMCHA minimum
Employee + Two or more	\$2,375.72 minus PEMCHA minimum
No Medical Plan Enrollment Hired After July 1, 2018	\$400.00
No Medical Plan Enrollment Hired Prior to July 1,2018	\$779.86

Effective January 1, 2024 SVCW's contribution to the section 125 Flex Plan account set forth above for January 1, 2023 will increase by ninety percent (90%) of the increase in the Bay Area Kaiser medical premium rates that take effect on that date for the employee's respective level of plan enrollment, minus the dollar increase in the PEMHCA minimum contribution that takes effect on that date pursuant to section 13.1 above.

Effective January 1, 2025 SVCW's contribution to the section 125 Flex Plan account set forth above for January 1, 2024 will increase by ninety percent (90%) of the increase in the Bay Area Kaiser medical premium rates that take effect on that date, minus the dollar increase in the PEMHCA minimum contribution that takes effect on that date pursuant to section 13.1 above.

Effective January 1, 2026 SVCW's contribution to the section 125 Flex Plan account set forth above for January 1, 2025 will increase by ninety percent (90%) of the increase in the Bay Area Kaiser medical premium rates that take effect on that date, minus the dollar increase in the PEMHCA minimum contribution that takes effect on that date pursuant to section 13.1 above.

Effective January 1, 2027 SVCW's contribution to the section 125 Flex Plan account set forth above for January 1, 2026 will increase by ninety percent (90%) of the increase in the Bay Area Kaiser medical premium rates that take effect on that date, minus the dollar increase in the PEMHCA minimum contribution that takes effect on that date pursuant to section 13.1 above.

Effective January 1, 2028 SVCW's contribution to the section 125 Flex Plan account set forth above for January 1, 2027 will increase by ninety percent (90%) of the increase in the Bay Area Kaiser medical premium rates that take effect on that date, minus the dollar increase in the PEMHCA minimum contribution that takes effect on that date pursuant to section 13.1 above.

(C) Employees who have SVCW Section 125 Flex Plan contributions remaining after deduction of all CalPERS Health Benefits Plan and dental plan premiums, dependent care, and uninsured medical expenses and amounts designated by the employee for that purpose may elect to receive the remaining amount as taxable compensation, to have it deposited in the employee's I.R.S. Section 457 deferred compensation account. Deferrals into the Section 457 plan are subject to applicable law and contribution limits). If the sum of the employee's

contributions exceeds the amounts contributed to the Section 125 Plan by SVCW, the balance shall be paid by the employee by payroll deduction. The election and contributions under this subsection C are subject to applicable law and contribution limits.

(D) SVCW shall have authority to take any action(s) necessary to conform its Section 125 Plan, and Section 457 plan to the requirements of applicable law and to preserve their tax preferred or tax deferred status.

13.3 Longevity Recognition Benefit

Employees hired by SVCW before January 30, 2011 who have completed at least five (5) years of continuous service with SVCW immediately preceding retirement through CalPERS shall be eligible for a monthly longevity recognition benefit payment by SVCW that, when added to the amount of the minimum contribution provided under subsection 13.1 above, equals the premium for the plan in which the employee enrolls or the Bay Area Kaiser rate applicable for the retiree's level of enrollment (i.e., single, two party, or 2+ parties), whichever is less, except that this amount shall decline to the applicable Kaiser Medicare supplemental plan rate when the employee reaches Medicare eligibility age or to the Bay Area Kaiser combination rate when the employee's spouse becomes Medicare eligible before the employee becomes Medicare eligible. Employees hired on or after January 30, 2011 who retire from SVCW will not be eligible for longevity recognition benefits.

13.4 Retiree Health Savings Account ("RHSA")

Upon adoption of this MOU (July 1, 2018-June 30, 2023) SVCW will establish a Retiree Health Savings Account ("RHSA") for members of the bargaining unit not eligible for the Longevity Retirement Benefit under section 13.3. Upon establishment of the RHSA, SVCW shall contribute fifty dollars (\$50) each month to each eligible employee's RHSA. The employer contribution into the RHSA is not a vested benefit and may be modified and/or deleted in its entirety subject to collective bargaining of successor MOU's.

SVCW has established a Retiree Health Savings Account ("RHSA") for members of the bargaining unit not eligible for the Longevity Retirement Benefit under Section 13.3. SVCW shall contribute twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) per pay period to each eligible employee's RHSA. The employer contribution into the RHSA is not a vested benefit and may be modified and/or deleted in its entirety subject to collective bargaining of successor MOUs.

13.5 Dental

An employee shall enroll in dental insurance coverage under the plan offered by SVCW. SVCW shall contribute up to two hundred nine dollars and seventy-eight cents (\$209.78) per month, based on the employee's selected coverage, to the employee's Section 125 account described in subsection 13.2 toward the premium payable for the dental plan offered by SVCW.

13.6 Life Insurance

Subject to all terms and conditions of any agreement which may be entered into between SVCW and any organization or organizations offering life insurance coverage benefits,

SVCW shall furnish to each employee, general life insurance coverage, the face amount of One Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$150,000). Employees may voluntarily elect to opt-out at time of hire and only receive the benefit of life insurance coverage with the face amount of Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$50,000) SVCW shall pay the premiums for and on behalf of each such employee for the insurance so provided. However, the employer premium in excess of \$50,000 is taxable benefit and the employee will be responsible for any tax due.

13.7 Change in Employee Benefit Plans

SVCW may choose to evaluate the Health and Welfare plans currently available to employees to determine if similar or better coverage may be available at lower cost to the Authority. SVCW may substitute new insurance carriers or arrange for self-insurance, provided that the overall coverage is acceptable to the Union.

Section 14. Retirement Plan

- (A) (1) For employees hired before July 1, 2011, SVCW will provide for the participation of such employees in the California Public Employee Retirement System ("PERS") under the PERS "2% at 55" Miscellaneous employee formula with the following additional features: One-Year Final Compensation, 4th Level Survivor Benefits, and Public Service Credit for Military, Peace Corps, AmeriCorps or Vista Service.
 - (2) For employees hired on or after July 1, 2011, but who are not required to participate in the retirement plan described in subsection A.3 of this section, SVCW will provide for the participation of such employees in the PERS "2% at 60" retirement formula with the following features: three-year compensation base calculation feature, 4th Level Survivor Benefits, and Public Service Credit for Military, Peace Corps, AmeriCorps or Vista Service.
 - (3) In 2013 SVCW implemented a new pension tier in accordance with and subject to the terms of the Public Employee Pension Reform Act of 2013 ("PEPRA"). That new pension tier is referred to in this MOU as the "PEPRA tier." For employees required by law to participate in the PEPRA tier, the PEPRA established a pension formula of two percent (2%) of pensionable compensation for each qualifying year of service at the normal retirement age of 62 years. For purposes of this formula, PERS will calculate an eligible retiree's pension based on the average annual pensionable compensation earned by the member during the thirty-six (36) consecutive month period immediately preceding retirement (or date of last separation from service if prior to retirement) or any other period of thirty-six (36) consecutive months during the member's applicable service that the member designates.
 - (4) Members of the PEPRA Tier (paragraph 3 above) will contribute toward the PEPRA Tier PERS Member contribution an amount equal to not less than fifty percent (50%) of the normal cost of the new tier, as determined from time to time by PERS, or the amount of the contribution provided by this MOU for members of the PEPRA Tier, whichever is greater. Such contribution will be made by payroll deduction.
 - (5) Employees subject to the Pre-PEPRA formulas described in subsections 14.A.1 and 14.A.2 above will pay the full employee PERS Member contribution or one-half SVCW-SE L39 MOU 2023-2028

of (1/2) of the normal cost, whichever is greater, for the applicable benefit formula.

- (6) If any term of this MOU conflicts or is inconsistent with the PEPRA, any amendment thereto, or any binding judicial ruling applying or construing the PEPRA or PERS rules promulgated pursuant thereto, the PEPRA, such amendment, rules or ruling will prevail.
- (B) The Parties acknowledge that the current employer cost of pension contributions represents a major premise for SVCW's willingness and ability to provide wages and other benefits under this M.O.U. Therefore, employees who are subject to the plan set forth in Subsection A, paragraph 1 (PERS classic tier 1) of this section 14 will pay the following contributions toward the employer PERS contribution rate:
 - (1) Effective July 1, 2020 one percent of compensation earnable. The resulting total employee contribution as of this date will be eight percent (8%) of compensation earnable (1% of the SVCW's employer contribution plus the seven percent (7%) employee contribution.
 - (2) Effective July 1, 2021 an additional one percent of compensation earnable (for a total of two percent). The resulting total employee contribution as of this date will be nine percent (9%) of compensation earnable (2% of the SVCW's employer contribution plus the seven percent (7%) employee contribution).
 - (3) Effective July 1, 2022 an additional one percent of compensation earnable (for a total of three percent). The resulting total employee contribution as of this date will be ten percent (10%) of compensation earnable (3% of the SVCW's employer contribution plus the seven percent (7%) employee contribution).

(C) PERS Tier 2 and PEPRA Employees

Subject to the requirements of applicable law, if SVCW's PERS employer contribution rate for employees subject to the plans set forth in Subsection A, paragraphs 2 or 3 of this section 14 exceeds twelve percent (12%) as announced by PERS from time to time, the members of the affected tier shall pay an additional contribution equal to the announced increase.

If PERS announces a reduction in the SVCW's required PERS employer contribution rate and the pre-existing rate exceeds twelve percent (12%) (of pensionable compensation or compensation earnable, whichever applies,) the contribution toward the SVCW's employer contribution required under this subsection B of members of the applicable tier shall be reduced by the same percentage as the announced reduction to the extent the employer's announced rate remains above twelve percent.

If SVCW PERS employer contribution rate subsequently declines, the reduction in employee compensation provided in this paragraph will be restored to the extent of such decline. The restoration process will end when SVCW's PERS employer contribution rate returns to the level at which the employee payment of excess employer contributions began. However, if after exceeding twelve percent (12%) the employer contribution rate falls below twelve percent (12%) the employer will, on each pay day, place a dollar amount equal to the difference between the cost of an twelve percent contribution rate and the lower actual employer contribution rate for that pay period in an interest bearing

reserve account. The placement of funds into the reserve will cease when the fund contains the approximate equivalent of a four percent (4%) employer PERS contribution per year for three years based on the payroll in effect at the time the limit is reached. Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties, funds in the account will be used only to offset employer contribution rates that subsequently exceed twelve percent (12%), in lieu of employee's paying an additional contribution, until the funds are exhausted. After they are exhausted, employees will pick up the employer contribution exceeding twelve percent (12%).

(D) The employee contributions toward employee or employer PERS contributions set forth above will be made by payroll deduction. To the extent permitted by applicable law, employee contributions toward the Employee's or SVCW's PERS contributions made pursuant to this MOU will be deducted on a pre-tax basis pursuant to and in accordance with section 414(h)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code. If such payroll deduction is not legally permissible then the negotiated increases in employee contribution in (B) (1), (2) and (3) above will be accomplished by percentage reduction of base wage rates applicable to such employees.

(E) <u>457 Deferred Compensation Plan Matching Contribution</u>

SVCW has heretofore established an I.R.C. section 457 deferred compensation plan into which employees have had the opportunity to make tax deferred contributions. Effective on the dates shown below, SVCW will match each participating employee's contribution into the employee's 457 plan account up to the maximum amount shown below (that are annualized for purposes of illustration). SVCW will not match one-time-only employee contributions (e.g. for vacation leave or other termination payoffs). The match will be made each pay period but only for continuing level contributions so as to minimize administrative burdens associated with the match. Contributions made by the employee that exceed the maximum match for the pay period will be disregarded in determining whether the contribution is a continuing level contribution for which a matching SVCW contribution is required.

Effective Date	Maximum SVCW Match (annualized)
July 1, 2018	\$1700
July 1, 2019	\$1940
July 1, 2020	\$2240
July 1, 2021	\$2600
July 1, 2022	\$2960

Section 15. Safety Boots and Protective Clothing

SVCW shall reimburse employees for the purchase of up to two (2) pairs of steel-toed safety boots in an amount not to exceed three hundred ten dollars (\$310). Up to eleven (11) sets of protective clothing will be provided by SVCW, at its cost, to each employee required to wear such protective clothing. Three (3) coveralls will also be provided by SVCW, at its cost, to each operator. SVCW Manager may authorize a substitution of coveralls for protective clothing or protective clothing for coveralls if requested by the employee.

Section 16. Holidays

16.1 Entitlements

Regular full-time employees shall be paid eight (8) hours for each designated Holiday, provided they are in a pay status on both their regularly scheduled workdays immediately preceding and following the holiday.

16.2 Regular Holidays

The holidays for SVCW are from 12:01 a.m. to the following midnight on:

- (a) New Year's Day
- (b) Martin Luther King, Jr.'s Birthday (effective January 18, 2021)
- (c) Presidents' Day
- (d) Memorial Day
- (e) Independence Day
- (f) Labor Day
- (g) Thanksgiving Day
- (h) Day after Thanksgiving Day
- (i) Christmas Day
- (j) Five (5) Floating Holidays

If the holiday (other than a floating holiday) falls on the employee's first regularly scheduled day of rest, the employee's immediately preceding regularly scheduled work day will be observed as that employee's holiday. If the holiday (other than a floating holiday) falls on the employee's second or third regularly scheduled day of rest the holiday will be observed on the employee's next regularly scheduled day of work.

16.3 Floating Holidays

Except as otherwise provided in this section 16, floating holidays will be credited and must be used in accordance with the "Floating Holidays" provisions of Administrative Policy No. 2018-01. To be eligible for a floating holiday, the employee shall request from the Manager or their designated representative, the scheduling of said holiday a minimum of seven (7) working days prior to the commencement of said holiday. An employee may not accumulate more than forty (40) hours of floating holiday time (twenty [20] hours for regular part-time employees). The crediting of additional floating holidays will cease when the accumulation ceiling is reached. The employee is thereafter ineligible to receive credit for additional floating holidays until the next July 1 on which their or accumulation is below the ceiling. At that time, they may be credited with that calendar year's floating holidays to the extent they are below the accumulation ceiling on that July 1.

16.4 Holiday Pay

If an employee works on a holiday (except floating holidays), the employee shall receive the employee's regular pay plus one and one-half $(1\frac{1}{2})$ times the employee's hourly rate of pay, times the hours worked on the holiday.

Section 17. Vacation

17.1 Vacation Benefits

Upon date of hire through the fourth year of service, workers shall accrue vacation at a rate (3.077 hours per pay period) that yields 80 hours of vacation per year. The fifth through the ninth year of service, workers will accrue vacation at a rate (4.616 hours per pay period) that yields 120 hours of vacation per year. The tenth through the sixteenth year of service, workers will accrue vacation at a rate (6.154 hours per pay period) that yields 160 hours of vacation per year. The seventeenth through the nineteenth year of service, workers will accrue vacation at a rate (6.923 hours per pay period) that yields 180 hours of vacation per year. The twentieth and subsequent years of service, workers shall accrue vacation at a rate (7.692 hours per pay period) that yields 200 hours of vacation per year. The accumulation of vacation is suspended when the employee reaches the accumulation ceiling set forth in section 17.3 below and resumes when the employee drops below that ceiling. The following table illustrates accrual rates:

Completed Years of Service	Accrual Rate Annualized	Hours Per Pav Period
0 through 4	80 hours/year	3.08
5 through 9	120 hours/year	4.62
10 through 16	160 hours/year	6.16
17 through 19	180 hours/year	6.93
20+ years	200 hours/year	7.70

17.2 Vacation Scheduling

Operations

The times during the calendar year at which an employee shall take vacation shall be determined by the Manager or the Manager's designated representative with due regard to the wishes of the employee and particular regard to the needs of the Authority.

Annual Vacation Schedule:

All Operations employees shall, on a form provided by the Authority, indicate their preference for vacation for the coming calendar year during the first two calendar weeks of October. The Authority will post a final Annual Vacation Schedule by November 15th of each year to be effective through the end of the following calendar year. The Annual Vacation Schedule will be re-opened during the first two calendar weeks of June of each year to provide an opportunity for employees to make changes to their vacation schedules during the remaining 6-months (July through December) of the calendar year. The final Annual Vacation Schedule will be posted by July 15th of each year. Preference of vacation date shall be given to employees according to their length of service in as reasonable a manner as possible.

Employees shall be required to take all time reserved on the annual calendar as requested and approved. Time previously requested that occurs in the second half of the year may be changed during the two-week period each June, but once the change window closes, all requested and approved time off shall be taken by the employee.

In the event of an extenuating circumstance (i.e., Personal injury or illness, family illness or death) an employee may not be required to take the approved time reserved on the annual calendar if approved by SVCW management. All requests for an extenuating circumstance exemption must be submitted as early as is reasonably possible given the circumstances and must be approved by the SVCW Manager or the Manager's designee.

General Leave Requests >30 Days in Advance:

Ad hoc requests for vacation not scheduled through the annual process and submitted by the employee in writing to his or her supervisor 30 days in advance or greater of the desired vacation time will be subject to the following approval considerations:

- The Annual Vacation Schedule takes precedent; an employee cannot bump another employee's previously approved annual vacation leave for any reason, including more seniority of the requester.
- All leave will be granted on a "First Come First Serve" basis.
- Minimal shift staffing requirements must be met and will be acceptable criteria for denial of a request for leave time.
- Based upon workload (SOR's, plant shutdowns, wet weather events, etc.), leave requests may be denied.
- SVCW supervisors shall make every reasonable attempt to accommodate requests based on the above criteria.
- SVCW Manager, Assistant Manager, Wastewater Superintendent or Chief Financial Officer, department dependent, may allow "vacation time trades" between employees as long as the above criteria are met and there are no other extenuating or special needs requiring the presence of a particular employee during the affected times.

The supervisor shall respond to the employee's request in writing within three (3) business days (Monday through Friday excluding holidays).

General Leave Requests <30 Days in Advance:

Ad hoc requests for vacation not scheduled through the annual sign up and submitted by the employee in writing to his or her supervisor less than 30 days in advance of the desired vacation time will be subject to the following approval considerations:

- The Annual Vacation Schedule takes precedent; an employee cannot bump another employee's previously approved annual vacation leave or leave approved with more than 30 days of notice, for any reason including more seniority of the requester.
- All leave will be granted on a MFirst Come First Serve" basis.
- Minimal shift staffing requirements must be met and will be acceptable criteria for denial of a request for leave time.
- Based upon workload (SOR's, plant shutdowns, wet weather events, etc.), leave requests may be denied.
- SVCW supervisors shall make every reasonable attempt to accommodate

requests based on the above criteria.

 SVCW Manager, Assistant Manager, Wastewater Superintendent or Chief Financial Officer, department dependent, may allow "vacation time trades" between employees as long as the above criteria are met and there are no other extenuating or special needs requiring the presence of a particular employee during the affected times.

The supervisor shall respond to the employee's request in writing in a reasonable amount of time, not to exceed seven calendar days, however, during Wet Weather Season (November 1st through March 1st) employees cannot expect to receive approval until the "7-day" weather forecast immediately preceding the requested time off is available.

The above criteria for "greater than" or "less than" thirty days leave time requests shall apply to all forms of leave requests, i.e., vacation leave, compensatory time off or any other earned leave.

Emergency Cancellation:

In the event of an emergency, SVCW Management. by direction of the SVCW Manager or the SVCW Manager's designee, reserves the right to cancel, without prejudice, any and all types and forms of leave, whether previously approved or not. In the event of such cancellation employees whose leave is cancelled will be entitled to reimbursement for non-refundable documented costs they have incurred related to the cancelled leave. In addition, employees subject to cancellation of previously approved leave shall be paid at a rate of one- and one-half times (1.5 times) their normal rate for up to the first forty (40) hours worked during the period of time affected by the cancellation of their previously approved leave. Normal hours and overtime rules will apply after the first 40 hours if applicable.

Non-Operations

General Leave Requests – 40 hours or less

Requests of forty (40) or less hours of vacation leave shall be submitted in writing to the employee's supervisor fourteen (14) calendar days in advance of the requested leave.

General Leave Requests – More than 40 hours

Requests of more than forty (40) hours of vacation leave shall be submitted in writing to the employee's supervisor thirty (30) calendar days in advance of the requested leave.

Ad Hoc vacation leave requests shall be provided to the employee's supervisor for approval based on operational and scheduling needs.

17.3 Vacation Accumulation

No employee may accumulate more than twice the employee's annual entitlement of vacation at any one time.

17.4 Vacation Pay at Termination

Upon termination of employment, a regular employee shall be paid cash value of their accrued vacation leave at the time of termination.

Section 18. Income Protection Plan

18.1 Definitions

For the purposes of this section, the following words shall have the meaning respectively ascribed thereto:

- (A) <u>Absence Occurrence:</u> An absence from work arising out of a single illness or a combination of illnesses (but which together give rise to the absence), whether for one day or for any number of consecutive workdays excluding, however, an absence from work arising out of the following:
 - (1) Illness, bodily injury, or exposure to contagious disease qualifying for benefits pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Laws of the State of California, or Section 19.5 hereof, or both such provisions; or
 - (2) Any routine office visit by a duly licensed physician or dental provider which shall be credited to Personal Leave in 18.8 below.
- (B) <u>Eligible Employee:</u> Employees holding a position of employment under regular appointment.
- (C) <u>Family Member</u>: A spouse, state registered domestic partner, parent, child (natural or adopted) or other person under the legal custody or care of an Eligible Employee. SVCW Manager may grant an employee's request to treat as a family member for purposes of this section an individual with a relationship to the employee not otherwise included in the foregoing definition if, in the Manager's judgment, the relationship is of a nature and quality comparable to those for which subsection 18.6 of this section authorizes the use of Income Protection leave benefits pursuant to subsections A and C of this section, and that the employee is the only person able to care for the person needing the care.
- (D) <u>Illness</u>: Disease, exposure to contagious disease, bodily injury, or pregnancy related disability or any other cause of incapacitation of an Eligible Employee except that covered by the provisions of the Workers' Compensation Laws of the State of California, or Section 19.5 hereof, or both such provisions.
- (E) <u>Unit of Benefit</u>: The measure of the frequency of the right to obtain benefits accruable under the Income Protection Plan established herein, each one of which may be used by an Eligible Employee upon any one Absence Occurrence to receive compensation at said employee's regular rate of pay, or 67 percent of said rate, during such absence, subject to the terms and conditions hereof.

18.2 Continuation of Compensation

Whenever an employee is incapacitated by an illness or injury not arising out of their employment which results in an Absence Occurrence, they will continue to receive compensation at the regular rate of pay, or 67 per cent of said rate, subject to the terms and conditions of this section.

18.3 Accrual of Units of Benefit

Eligible Employees shall receive one (1) Unit upon initial appointment. This initial Unit shall be eligible for full pay until a second Unit is accrued. Following the initial Unit provided upon initial appointment, employees shall accrue Units of Benefit at a rate of one unit for each three consecutive months of employment until a maximum of five (5) Units are accrued. No Unit of Benefit shall accrue for any such employee for any month during which an Absence Occurrence is incurred; provided, however, that if, during any 3-month period which Units of Benefit accrue at the foregoing rate, said employee works at least one thirty day period, a Unit of Benefit shall accrue for such employee for said 3-month period.

18.4 Use of Units

If the accrued balance of Units of Benefit credited to an Eligible Employee is 2 or more Units, with respect to any Absence Occurrence, an Eligible Employee may elect to use one (and only one) Unit of Benefit in order to receive compensation at said employee's regular rate of pay for the duration of said Absence Occurrence, but for no longer than 90 consecutive days. If but 1 Unit of Benefit has accrued for an Eligible Employee, or the balance of such units remaining for such employee is 1 unit, with respect to any Absence Occurrence, such Eligible Employee may elect to use said unit in order to receive compensation at the rate of 67 percent of said employee's regular rate of pay for such Absence Occurrence, but for no longer than 90 consecutive days. The accrued balance of Units of Benefits credited to an Eligible Employee shall be reduced by one unit for each Absence Occurrence for such Eligible Employee electing to use a Unit of Benefit therefor.

However, if the Absence Occurrence is a result of hospitalization or any absence from work immediately preceding and/or following such hospitalization related to the same illness or combination of illnesses giving rise to the absence, the accrued balance of Units of Benefit credited to an Eligible Employee shall not be reduced by one unit for the Absence Occurrence. If but one Unit of Benefit has accrued for an Eligible Employee, or the balance of such units remaining for such employee is one unit, with respect to an Absence Occurrence which results in hospitalization, such Eligible Employee may elect to use said unit in order to receive compensation at said employee's regular rate of pay for the duration of said Absence Occurrence, but for no longer than ninety (90) consecutive days. The accrued balance of Units of Benefit credited to an Eligible Employee shall not be reduced by one unit for that Absence Occurrence.

In the event of hardship of an unusual nature the Commission of Silicon Valley Clean Water will consider an employee's request for special consideration.

18.5 Illness of Family Member

One Unit of Benefit in any calendar year may be used by an Eligible Employee for an Absence Occurrence not to exceed a total of forty (40) work hours arising out of illness, bodily injury, or other incapacitation of a family member including a state-registered domestic partner, or as otherwise required under the California Family Rights Act (CFRA) or the federal Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA).

18.6 Notice

Notice must be given by the Eligible Employee intending to use the Unit of Benefit in accordance with Section 18.4 prior to the commencement of such Absence Occurrence. No Unit of Benefit may be used in advance of its accrual. No Unit of Benefit may be converted into cash or its equivalent, or time off, nor other benefit. The Manager may require, at their discretion, written verification of the cause of any Absence Occurrence by a duly licensed physician or dental surgeon.

18.7 Health and Welfare Coverage

An employee receiving benefits under the Income Protection Plan will receive four (4) months of extended Health and Welfare coverage, at SVCW's expense, commencing the first day following the expiration of a Unit of Benefit when such Unit of Benefit is used for an Absence Occurrence that results in hospitalization and subsequent recovery from the illness or injury giving rise to the hospitalization.

18.8 Personal Leave

Employees in active status shall be credited twenty-four (24) hours of Personal Leave (PL) effective the first pay period of each fiscal year. Employees beginning employment or returning from an unpaid status after that date shall have a prorated amount of Personal Leave credited to them calculated on a twenty-six (26) pay period basis.

Personal Leave may be used for routine office visits with a duly licensed medical, vision, or dental provider; provided, however, that such absence shall have been approved in advance by the Manager or designee.

Personal Leave shall not be accumulated from one (1) year to the next. Any Personal Leave remaining to the employee's credit at the end of the last pay period of each Fiscal Year shall be lost.

Section 19. Leaves of Absence

19.1 Leave Without Pay

The Manager may grant employees leave of absence without pay. No leave shall be granted except upon written request of the employee. Such requests shall be submitted to the Manager. Such leaves shall normally be granted to permit the employee to engage in activities that will increase his or her value to SVCW upon return, or because of sickness, injury or personal hardship. Employees may not be granted a leave of absence until all accrued vacation is taken. Failure on the part of an employee on leave to report promptly at its expiration shall result in dismissal of the employee. Vacation and sick leave credits shall not accrue to an employee on leave of absence. The decision of the Manager on granting or refusing to grant a leave of absence or extension thereof shall be final and conclusive and shall not be subject to the grievance procedure of this Memorandum of Understanding. SVCW shall make no payment toward Health and Welfare during the employee's leave without pay.

19.2 Jury Duty

An employee summoned to jury duty shall inform his or her manager and, if required to serve, may be absent from duty with full pay only for those hours required to serve. Any jury fees, excluding mileage, received by an employee shall be remitted to SVCW.

19.3 Military Leaves of Absence

The provisions of the Military and Veterans Code of the State of California shall govern military leave of SVCW employees.

19.4 Leaves Pursuant to Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), California Family Rights Act (CFRA), and Pregnancy Disability Leave Act (PDL)

SVCW will administer these leaves in accordance with the law.

- (A) FMLA: Upon request to SVCW, any employee who meets the legal eligibility requirements for FMLA shall be entitled to at least twelve (12) weeks of FMLA, which will be extended for up to an additional six (6) weeks of leave with the same FMLA protections, for a total of eighteen (18) weeks during a rolling twelve (12) month period, measured backward from the date an employee uses any FMLA leave (less if so requested by the employee), for a qualifying reason in accordance with federal laws. FMLA leave will run concurrently with CFRA and PDL leaves to the extent permitted by law.
- (B) CFRA: Upon request of SVCW, any employee who meets the legal eligibility requirements for CFRA shall be entitled to at least twelve (12) weeks of CFRA leave during a rolling twelve (12) month period, measured backward from the date an employee uses any CFRA leave (less if so requested by the employee), for a qualifying reason in accordance with state law. CFRA leave will run concurrently with FMLA leave to the extent permitted by law, except that CFRA leave will not run concurrently with pregnancy disability leave under the PDL.
- (C) PDL: Upon request of SVCW, any employee who meets the legal eligibility requirements for PDL shall be entitled to up to four (4) months of PDL as provided in state law.

19.5 Medical Certification.

The employee may be asked to provide medical certification of the need for family care, pregnancy disability, or medical leave pursuant to this Section, or for FMLA, CFRA and/or PDL. Leave for periods of family care, pregnancy disability, or medical leave that are not covered by the FMLA, CFRA, or PDL, or that exceed the leave allowed under the FMLA, CFRA, and/or PDL, may be granted at the discretion of SVCW.

19.6 Intermittent Use of Leave.

The FMLA/CFRA/PDL entitlement may be in broken periods, intermittently on a regular or irregular basis, or may include reduced work schedules depending on the specific circumstances and situations surrounding the request for leave. The leave may include use of appropriate available paid leave accruals when accruals are used to maintain pay status, but use of such accruals is not required beyond that specified in Section 19.1 - Leave Without Pay. When paid leave accruals are used for FMLA, CFRA, and/or PDL, such time shall be counted as a part of the leave entitlement.

19.7 Aggregate Use for Spouse.

For FMLA only, in the situation where husband and wife are both employed by SVCW, SVCW-SE L39 MOU 2023-2028

the family care or medical leave entitlement based on the birth, adoption or foster care of a child is limited to an aggregate for both employees together of eighteen (18) weeks in a "rolling" twelve (12) month period measured backward from the date the employee uses any FMLA leave. Employees requesting FMLA leave for this purpose are required to advise SVCW when their spouse is also employed by the Agency.

19.8 Definitions.

For medical and family care leaves of absence Section 18.2.A, the following definitions apply: FMLA, CFRA, and PDL definitions will be as set forth in state and federal laws.

- (A) Child: A biological, adopted, or foster child, stepchild, legal ward, conservatee or a child who is under eighteen (18) years of age for whom an employee stands in loco parentis or for whom the employee is the guardian or conservator, or an adult dependent child of the employee.
- (B) Parent: A biological, foster, or adoptive parent, a step-parent, legal guardian, conservator, or other person standing in loco parentis to a child.
- (C) Spouse: A partner in marriage as defined in California Family Code Section 300.
- (D) Domestic Partner: An unmarried person, eighteen (18) years or older, to whom the employee is not related and with whom the employee resides and shares the common necessities of life.
- (E) Serious Health Condition: An illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition which warrants the participation of a family member to provide care during a period of treatment or supervision and involves either inpatient care in a hospital, hospice or residential health care facility or continuing treatment or continuing supervision by a health care provider (e.g. physician or surgeon) as defined by State and Federal law.
- (F) Certification for Medical Leave: When requesting medical leave (including FMLA/CFRA leave) for the employee or employee's family member, the employee must provide a written medical certification from a health care provider of a person for whose care the leave is being taken or for the employee's own serious health condition, which need not identify the diagnosis or serious health condition involved, but shall contain:
 - 1. the date, if known, on which the serious health condition commenced;
 - 2. the probable duration of the condition;
 - 3. for family care, an estimate of the frequency and duration of the leave required to render care or supervision for the family member;
 - 4. for the employee's serious health condition a statement whether the employee is able to work, or is unable to perform one or more of the essential functions of their position;
 - 5. if for intermittent leave or a reduced work schedule leave, the certification should indicate the intermittent leave or reduced work schedule needed for the employee's serious health condition or for the care of the employee's family member, and its expected duration.

19.9 Industrial Disability Leave

(A) Eligibility

Whenever an employee appointed on a full time basis is disabled whether temporarily or permanently, by injury or illness arising out of and in the course of his or her duties, he or she shall become entitled to disability leave while so disabled without loss of compensation for the period of such disability, up to ninety (90) consecutive days from and after the date of such disability, or until such earlier date as he or she is retired.

(B) <u>Disability Leave Defined</u>

Disability leave means absence from duty of an employee because of illness or bodily injury when such absence is covered by the provisions of the Workers' Compensation Laws of the State of California. All payments made under this section shall be charged on a calendar day basis, and any benefits received from Workers Compensation Insurance shall be remitted to the Authority. Whether a leave claimed by an employee is chargeable as a Unit of Benefit under the Income Protection Plan, as described in Section 18 of this Memorandum of Understanding, or to disability leave, shall be determined by the Agency or officer hearing worker's compensation cases and shall be final and conclusive. SVCW may, at its discretion, withhold payment of any benefits under this section until such time as there has been a final adjudication as to whether or not the illness or injury is one covered by Workers' Compensation. In any event, SVCW shall not be required to pay any benefits which will exceed the maximum Units of Benefit or grant disability leave until such final adjudication has been made. Benefits under the Income Protection Plan and disability leave shall be mutually exclusive.

(C) <u>Determination of Disability</u>

The SVCW Manager, according to the Public Employees Retirement Law, as contracting agency shall determine whether an employee is disabled for purposes of that law, subject to the approval of the Commission.

(D) Application for Disability Retirement

The SVCW Manager shall make applications for disability retirement to the Public Employees Retirement System and take all other appropriate actions with regard to disability retirement and reinstatement of members under the Public Employees Retirement Law.

19.10 Funeral Leave

When death in the employee's immediate family requires their presence at home, an employee may use up to, but not to exceed three (3) days to make arrangements for the funeral and attend same. One (1) additional day if the funeral is held three hundred miles (300) miles or further from Redwood City. For the purpose of this Section, "immediate family" is defined as spouse, state-registered domestic partner, mother, father, child (biologic or adopted), step-child, siblings, grandmother, grandfather, grandchild, mother-in-law, father-in-law, brother-in-law or sister-in-law, or any other person under the legal custody or care of an eligible employee.

Section 20. Personnel Files.

An employee or their representative, on presentation of written authorization from the employee, shall have access to the employee's personnel file on request. SVCW shall furnish the employee copies of all performance evaluation reports and letters of reprimand or warning prior to placement of such documents into the employee's personnel file. The employee may be required to acknowledge, at the sole discretion of SVCW, the receipt of any document entered into their personnel file without prejudice to subsequent arguments concerning the contents of such documents.

Section 21. Grievance Procedure

21.1 Definition

A grievance shall be defined as any dispute arising during the term of the Memorandum of Understanding which involves the interpretation or application of any provision of this Memorandum of Understanding.

21.2 Initial Discussions

Any employee who believes that they have a grievance may discuss their complaint with the top management official in the department in which the employee works, or with such subordinate management official as the department head may designate. If the issue is not resolved within the department, or if the employee elects to submit their grievance directly to an official of the employee organization which is formally recognized as the representative of the classification to which they are assigned, the procedures hereafter specified may be invoked.

21.3 Referral to Manager

Any employee and an official of the Union which has jurisdiction over any position directly affected by the grievance may notify the Manager in writing that a grievance exists, and in such notification, state the particulars of the grievance and, if possible, the nature of the determination which is desired. No grievance may be processed under Section 21.4 below which has not first been filed and investigated in pursuance of this Section. A grievance which remains unresolved thirty (30) calendar days after it has been submitted in writing may be referred to the Adjustment Board.

21.4 Adjustment Board

(A) Composition of Board

In the event the Union and SVCW are unable to reach a mutually satisfactory accord on any grievance (as the term "grievance" is hereinabove defined) which arises and is presented during the term of this Memorandum of Understanding, such grievance shall be submitted to an Adjustment Board comprised of two (2) employee representatives and two (2) representatives of SVCW. The Union shall be an indispensable party to any grievance which is submitted to the Adjustment Board.

(B) Majority Vote Required

If an Adjustment Board is unable to arrive at a majority decision, either the Union or SVCW may require that the grievance be referred to the Manager. No Adjustment Board shall entertain, hear, decide or make recommendations on any dispute involving a position over which a recognized employee organization has jurisdiction unless such dispute falls within the definition of a grievance as hereinabove set forth Section 21.1.

(C) Amendments to Memorandum of Understanding Not Grievable

Proposals to add to or change this Memorandum of Understanding or written agreements or addenda supplementary hereto shall not be grievable and no proposal to modify, amend or terminate this Memorandum of Understanding, nor any matter or subject arising out of or in connection with such proposal, may be referred for grievance under this Section; and no Adjustment Board shall have the power to amend or modify this Memorandum of Understanding or written agreements or addenda supplementary hereto or to establish any new terms or conditions of employment.

(D) Agreement Required for Amendment

No changes in the Memorandum of Understanding or interpretations thereof (except interpretation resulting from Adjustment Board proceedings hereunder) will be recognized unless agreed to by the Manager and the Union.

21.5 Manager

(A) Recommendations By the Adjustment Board

The Manager shall consider the recommendations of the Adjustment Board. The Manager may accept, modify, or reject the recommendations of the adjustment Board and they shall notify the interested parties of their decision, including a statement of the reasons therefor, in writing within ten (10) working days after the receipt of the recommendations of the Adjustment Board.

(B) Acceptance by Default

In the event the Manager fails to render a decision within the ten (10) working day period, he or she must render written acceptance of the recommendations of the Adjustment Board.

21.6 The Commission of Silicon Valley Clean Water

(A) <u>Decision of Manager</u>

In the event the Union does not accept the decision of the Manager, the Union may file in writing, within five (5) working days of constructive receipt of the Manager's decision, an appeal for final review of the grievance by the Commission of Silicon Valley Clean Water.

(B) Final Decision by Commission

At a date and time mutually agreeable to the parties, the Commission of Silicon Valley Clean Water will schedule a hearing on the grievance. The decision of the Commission

on the merits of the grievance shall be final and binding to the parties.

21.7 Pay Claim

All complaints involving or concerning payment of compensation shall be filed in writing and no adjustments shall be retroactive for more than sixty (60) days from the date of filing.

21.8 Disciplinary Action for Suspension, Demotion, Reduction in Pay or Other Disciplinary Measures Less Than Termination

(A) Purpose

The purpose of this Section is merely to facilitate communication between SVCW and its employees regarding personnel problems. All disciplinary action may be initiated and imposed at the discretion of SVCW, based on the circumstances of each case.

(B) Discharge at the Will of the Authority

This Section shall not apply to the discharge of employees from their employment with SVCW. All employment with SVCW shall be on an at-will basis. Nothing in this Memorandum of Understanding in any way abrogates, limits, or modifies the right of SVCW to terminate or discharge any employee without cause, or shall be deemed to create a constitutional property right on the part of employees to continued employment absent a showing of cause for termination.

Section 22. Outside Employment

No employee shall engage in employment which is incompatible with the employment with SVCW. No employee shall apply themselves whatsoever to any outside employment during their regular working hours. No SVCW emblem, badge or other SVCW employee identification shall be worn by any person while in the employment of someone other than SVCW.

Section 23. Miscellaneous

23.1 Drug/Alcohol Program

SVCW prohibits the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance while on SVCW property, at work locations, or while on duty. An employee may not sell or provide drugs or alcohol to any other employee or any person while such an employee is on duty. An employee reasonably believed to be under the influence of alcohol or drugs shall be prevented from engaging in further work. Violation of this Section 23.1 may result in discipline up to and including termination. This program is a condition of employment. Employees must notify SVCW of any criminal drug statute conviction immediately following conviction. In case of such a conviction, SVCW may take appropriate personnel action up to and including termination or require the employee to satisfactorily participate in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program.

The emphasis of this program is to recognize that substance abuse is a form of illness and to assist with the rehabilitation of first-time offenders. Any disciplinary action shall SVCW-SE L39 MOU 2023-2028

be determined by the individual circumstances of each case.

23.2 Non-Economic Issues

Commencing upon the expiration of the second year of the term hereof, and for each successive year thereafter, each party may each year select a single non-economic issue of concern regarding which the parties shall meet and confer.

23.2 Layoff Discussions

If SVCW concludes that a layoff(s) affecting bargaining unit members is needed, it shall notify the Union in writing at least ten (10) days before implementing such action and provide the Union an opportunity within that ten (10) day period to meet to discuss such planned action. At the end of the ten (10) day period SVCW may proceed with the planned action. In a bona fide emergency SVCW may implement the layoff(s) without giving the notice first, but shall offer the Union an opportunity to meet as soon as is reasonably practicable under the circumstances.

Section 24. Severability of Provisions

24.1 Unaffected Sections Remain in Force

If any section, clause or provision of this Memorandum of Understanding is declared illegal by final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidation of such section, clause or provision shall not invalidate the remaining portions hereof, and such remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect for the duration of this Memorandum of Understanding.

24.2 Substitute Provisions

Upon such invalidation the parties agree to meet and confer concerning substitute provisions for those rendered or declared illegal.

Section 25. Past Practices and Existing Memorandum of Understanding

25.1 Continuance of Working Conditions

Continuance of working conditions and practices not specifically authorized by ordinance or resolution of the Commission is not guaranteed by this Memorandum of Understanding.

25.2 Memorandum of Understanding Supersedes Others

This Memorandum of Understanding shall supersede all existing Memoranda of Understanding between SVCW and the Union.

Section 26. Limited Reopener

During the term of this MOU (July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2028) the MOU may be reopened by SVCW to specifically address provisions concerning part-time employees.

Section 27. Effective, Operative Dates and Termination

This Memorandum of Understanding shall be effective on the date it is made and entered into as stated below. However, nothing herein shall preclude or interfere with the implementation of any provision of this MOU for which an earlier effective date is expressly provided. This Memorandum of Understanding shall remain in effect through June 30, 2028 at which time it shall terminate.

Made and entered into this ____27__ (day) of June, 2023. FOR THE INTERNATIONAL UNION OF FOR SILICON VALLEY CLEAN WATER OPERATING ENGINEERS, STATIONARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY: **ENGINEERS, LOCAL 39:** By: **Bart Florence** Teresa A. Herrera **Business Manager** Manager Brandy Johnson Jennifer Flick Director of Public Employees Human Resources Director By: Mark Gong Monte Hamamoto Business Representative Chief Operating Officer By: / David Rosas **Matthew Anderson** Senior Operator CFO/Assistant Manager By: By: Paul Hill Kim Hackett Senior Plant Mechanic Authority Engineer By: By: Francis Rooney **Chuck Flesher**

Senior Environmental Compliance Inspector

adust

Chief Negotiator

Made and entered into this	_ (day) of June, 2023.
FOR THE INTERNATIONAL UNION OF OPERATING ENGINEERS, STATIONARY ENGINEERS, LOCAL 39:	FOR SILICON VALLEY CLEAN WATER JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY:
By: Bart Florence	By: Teresa A. Herrera
Business Manager	Manager
By: Brandy Johnson	By: Jennifer Flick
Brandy Johnson Director of Public Employees	Jennifer Flick Human Resources Director
Ву:	By: Monte Hamamoto
Mark Gong Business Representative	Monte Hamamoto Chief Operating Officer
By:	Ву:
David Rosas Senior Operator	Matthew Anderson CFO/Assistant Manager
Ву:	Ву:
Paul Hill Senior Plant Mechanic	Kim Hackett Authority Engineer
Rv.	By: College To
By: Francis Rooney	Chuck Flesher
Senior Environmental Compliance Insp	

EXHIBIT A

Standard Administrative Procedure 2005-01 Approved by:

Revision: A Revision Date: 08/17/2022 Issue Date: 06/23/2005

SUBJECT: Call Back Pay

REFERENCES

Memorandum of Understanding Section 11.4 – Call Back

PURPOSE

This standard administrative procedure clarifies when overtime constitutes Call Back.

When the need for overtime is known in advance, arrangements will be made ahead of time with the employee during their work hours. There are occasions where overtime is needed on short notice (e.g. someone calls in sick, plant emergencies, etc). When short notice overtime is needed, arrangements are made with the employee during their work hours if possible, but contacting an employee while away from work may be necessary.

DEFINITIONS

Overtime – Work required in excess of 40 hours worked in any one work week.

Planned Overtime - Planned overtime is that which is scheduled three or more days in advance when arrangements are made during the employee's nonworking hours and two or more days when arrangements are made during the employee's working hours.

Unplanned Overtime - Unplanned Overtime is overtime that is scheduled less than three days in advance when arrangements are made during the employee's nonworking hours and less than two days when arrangements are made during the employee's working hours

PROCEDURE

Unplanned Overtime Qualifying for Call Back Pay

- 1. Employee is not working when overtime arrangements are made and the overtime will be worked on the same day, the following day (tomorrow), or the third day.
- 2. Employee is working when overtime arrangements are made and the overtime will be worked on the same day or the following day (tomorrow).

Example: Work on Monday & Tuesday until 1400 hrs; requested to stay longer on Monday and/or Tuesday.

Overtime not Qualifying for Call Back Pay

1. Overtime in which the employee is called to report before their regular starting time and works from the time they report to their regular starting time is not considered Call Back. Example: Work on Monday starting at 0600 hrs; requested to come in early Monday at 0200 hrs.

Planned Overtime. When an employee works planned overtime, call back pay does not apply.

RESPONSIBILITY

When assigning overtime, the Supervisor will specifically state whether or not the overtime qualifies for Call Back pay.

EXHIBIT B COMPENSATION PLAN

Silicon Valley Clean Water Negotiated Pay Scale Stationary Engineers Local 39

Fiscal Year: 2023-24
Cost-of-Living Adjustment 4.5%

General Represented Employees (hourty)	0-1				-				D0		F0		F0		
Class 0 Positions	D130	•	A0	_	B0	•	C0	•	D0	•	E0 68.12	•	F0	•	G0
Senior Operator Operator	D130	\$	55.49 44.35	\$	58.27 46.59	\$	61.15 48.89	\$	64.23 51.36	\$	53.97	\$	70.82 56.66	\$	74.35 59.45
Senior Plant Mechanic	D200	\$	53.48	\$	56.17	\$	58.96	\$	61.88	\$	65.01	\$	68.25	\$	71.68
Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician	D250	\$	57.17	\$	60.03	\$	63.02	\$	66.16	\$	69.51	\$	72.98	\$	76.63
Senior Frank Mechanic - Electrician Senior Instrumentation Technician	D230	\$	57.17	\$	60.03	\$	63.02	\$	66.16	\$	69.51	\$	72.98	\$	76.63
	D260	\$	60.02	\$	63.05	\$	66.17	\$	69.46	\$	72.99	\$	76.62	\$	80.46
Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic	D450		41.13		43.20		45.37	\$	47.67	\$	50.07		52.55		55.16
		\$	41.13	\$	43.20	\$	45.37		47.67	\$	50.07	\$	52.55	\$	
Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician	D460 D440	\$	41.13	\$	43.20	\$	45.37	S	47.67	\$	50.07	\$	52.55	\$	55.16 55.16
		-		-		-		-		-				-	
Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician	D470	\$	43.19	\$	45.36	\$	47.64	\$	50.05	\$	52.58	\$	55.18	\$	57.92
Planner / Scheduler Assistant	D852	\$	41.13	\$	43.20	\$	45.37	\$	47.67	\$	50.07	\$	52.55	\$	55.16
Facilities Maintenance Technician	D870	\$	41.13	\$	43.20	\$	45.37	\$	47.67	\$	50.07	\$	52.55	\$	55.16
Water Quality Specialist *	D360	\$	51.73	\$	54.89	\$	58.30	\$	61.83	\$	65.63	\$	69.66	\$	73.15
Senior Laboratory Analyst **	D305	\$	60.18	\$	63.20	\$	66.35	\$	69.66	\$	73.15		-		-
Laboratory Analyst II	D303	\$	54.72	\$	57.46	\$	60.33	\$	63.35	\$	66.50		-		-
Laboratory Analyst I	D301	\$	49.74	\$	52.22	\$	54.83	\$	57.58	\$	60.46		-		-
Senior Environmental Compliance Inspector *	D351	\$	54.58	\$	57.32	\$	60.18	\$	63.20	\$	66.35		-		-
Environmental Compliance Inspector	D353	\$	49.63	\$	52.11	\$	54.72	\$	57.46	\$	60.33		-		-
Pollution Prevention Specialist	D355	\$	49.63	\$	52.11	\$	54.72	\$	57.46	\$	60.33		-		-
Materials Specialist	D703	\$	52.99	\$	55.71	\$	58.55	\$	61.42	\$	64.49		-		-
Utility Worker	D850	\$	38.08	\$	40.18	\$	42.37	\$	44.72	\$	47.17		-		-
Class 1 Positions	Codes		A1		B1		C1		D1		E1		F1		G1
Senior Operator	D131	\$	56.61	\$	59.41	\$	62.37	\$	65.52	\$	69.48	\$	72.24	\$	75.83
Operator	D401	\$	45.24	\$	47.53	\$	49.86	\$	5238	\$	55.06	\$	57.78	\$	60.65
Senior Plant Mechanic	D201	\$	54.55	\$	57.30	\$	60.14	\$	63.11	\$	66.32	\$	69.62	\$	73.11
Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician	D251	\$	58.31	\$	61.24	\$	64.27	\$	67.48	\$	70.90	\$	74.43	\$	78.16
Senior Instrumentation Technician	D231	\$	58.31	\$	61.24	\$	64.27	\$	67.48	\$	70.90	\$	74.43	\$	78.16
Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician	D261	\$	61.22	\$	64.30	\$	67.49	\$	70.86	\$	74.45	\$	78.15	\$	82.07
Plant Mechanic	D451	\$	41.95	\$	44.07	\$	46.28	\$	48.61	\$	51.08	\$	53.61	\$	56.27
Plant Mechanic - Electrician	D461	\$	41.95	\$	44.07	\$	46.28	\$	48.61	\$	51.08	\$	53.61	\$	56.27
Instrumentation Technician	D444	\$	44.05	\$	44.07	\$	46.28	\$	48.61	\$	51.08	\$	53.61	\$	56.27
	D441	_	41.95	•						_	F0 00		56.29	\$	59.08
Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician	D471	\$	41.95	\$	46.27	\$	48.59	\$	51.05	\$	53.63	\$	JU. Z.3	•	
		-				\$	48.59 46.28	\$	51.05 48.61	\$ \$	53.63	\$	53.61	\$	56.27
Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician	D471	\$	44.06	\$	46.27	-		-		-		-		-	56.27 56.27
Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant	D471 D853	\$	44.06 41.95	\$	46.27 44.07	\$	46.28	\$	48.61	\$	51.08	\$	53.61	\$	
Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician	D471 D853 D871	\$ \$ \$	44.06 41.95 41.95	\$ \$ \$	46.27 44.07 44.07	\$	46.28 46.28	\$	48.61 48.61	\$	51.08 51.08	\$	53.61 53.61	\$	56.27
Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist *	D471 D853 D871 D361	\$ \$ \$	44.06 41.95 41.95 52.77	\$ \$ \$ \$	46.27 44.07 44.07 55.98	\$ \$ \$	46.28 46.28 59.48	\$ \$ \$	48.61 48.61 63.08	\$ \$ \$	51.08 51.08 66.95	\$	53.61 53.61	\$	56.27
Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist * Senior Laboratory Analyst **	D471 D853 D871 D361 D306	\$ \$ \$ \$	44.06 41.95 41.95 52.77 61.39	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	46.27 44.07 44.07 55.98 64.45	\$ \$ \$ \$	46.28 46.28 59.48 67.67	\$ \$ \$ \$	48.61 48.61 63.08 71.05	\$ \$ \$ \$	51.08 51.08 66.95 74.61	\$	53.61 53.61 71.05	\$	56.27
Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist Senior Laboratory Analyst Laboratory Analyst II	D471 D853 D871 D361 D306 D304	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	44.06 41.95 41.95 52.77 61.39 55.81	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	46.27 44.07 44.07 55.98 64.45 58.60	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	46.28 46.28 59.48 67.67 61.53	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	48.61 48.61 63.08 71.05 64.60	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	51.08 51.08 66.95 74.61 67.83	\$	53.61 53.61 71.05 -	\$	56.27 74.61 -
Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist * Senior Laboratory Analyst ** Laboratory Analyst II Laboratory Analyst I Senior Environmental Compliance Inspector *	D471 D853 D871 D361 D306 D304 D302 D352	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	44.06 41.95 41.95 52.77 61.39 55.81 50.74	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	46.27 44.07 44.07 55.98 64.45 58.60 53.28 58.47	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	46.28 46.28 59.48 67.67 61.53 55.93 61.39	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	48.61 48.61 63.08 71.05 64.60 58.74	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	51.08 51.08 66.95 74.61 67.83 61.67	\$	53.61 53.61 71.05 -	\$	56.27 74.61 -
Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist * Senior Laboratory Analyst ** Laboratory Analyst II Laboratory Analyst I Senior Environmental Compliance Inspector * Environmental Compliance Inspector	D471 D853 D871 D361 D306 D304 D302 D352 D354	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	44.06 41.95 41.95 52.77 61.39 55.81 50.74 55.66 50.63	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	46.27 44.07 44.07 55.98 64.45 58.60 53.28 58.47 53.15	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	46.28 46.28 59.48 67.67 61.53 55.93 61.39 55.81	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	48.61 48.61 63.08 71.05 64.60 58.74 64.45 58.60	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	51.08 51.08 66.95 74.61 67.83 61.67 67.67	\$	53.61 53.61 71.05 -	\$	56.27 74.61 -
Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist * Senior Laboratory Analyst ** Laboratory Analyst II Laboratory Analyst I Senior Environmental Compliance Inspector *	D471 D853 D871 D361 D306 D304 D302 D352	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	44.06 41.95 41.95 52.77 61.39 55.81 50.74 55.66	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	46.27 44.07 44.07 55.98 64.45 58.60 53.28 58.47	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	46.28 46.28 59.48 67.67 61.53 55.93 61.39	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	48.61 48.61 63.08 71.05 64.60 58.74 64.45	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	51.08 51.08 66.95 74.61 67.83 61.67	\$	53.61 53.61 71.05 - - -	\$	56.27 74.61 -

Class 0 - Employees not eligible for certification pay.

Class 1 - Employees achieving professional certification higher than specified for current classification qualify for certification pay per CLASS 1 salary schedule

^{*} Salary step "G" available only to Water Quality Specialists in Environmental Compliance Division as of 7/1/2013. Promotions to Snr Environmental Compliance Inspector limited to only one person in the position at any given time. The Water Quality Specialist classification not available to new hires after June 30, 2013.

^{**} There shall be only one person in the position of Senior Laboratory Analyst at any given time.

Silicon Valley Clean Water Negotiated Pay Scale Stationary Engineers Local 39

Fiscal Year: 2024-25
Cost-of-Living Adjustment 4.5%

General Represented Employees (hourty)															
Class 0 Positions	Codes		A0		B0		C0		D0		E0		F0		G0
Senior Operator	D130	\$	57.99	\$	60.89	\$	63.90	\$	67.12	\$	71.19	\$	74.01	\$	77.70
Operator	D400	\$	46.35	\$	48.69	\$	51.09	\$	53.67	\$	56.40	\$	59.21	\$	62.13
Senior Plant Mechanic	D200	\$	55.89	\$	58.70	\$	61.61	\$	64.66	\$	67.94	\$	71.32	\$	74.91
Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician	D250	\$	59.74	\$	62.73	\$	65.86	\$	69.14	\$	72.64	\$	76.26	\$	80.08
Senior Instrumentation Technician	D230	\$	59.74	\$	62.73	\$	65.86	\$	69.14	\$	72.64	\$	76.26	\$	80.08
Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician	D260	\$	62.72	\$	65.89	\$	69.15	\$	72.59	\$	76.27	\$	80.07	\$	84.08
Plant Mechanic	D450	\$	42.98	\$	45.14	\$	47.41	\$	49.82	\$	52.32	\$	54.91	\$	57.64
Plant Mechanic - Electrician	D460	\$	42.98	\$	45.14	\$	47.41	\$	49.82	\$	52.32	\$	54.91	\$	57.64
Instrumentation Technician	D440	\$	42.98	\$	45.14	\$	47.41	\$	49.82	\$	52.32	\$	54.91	\$	57.64
Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician	D470	\$	45.13	\$	47.40	\$	49.78	\$	52.30	\$	54.95	\$	57.66	\$	60.53
Planner / Scheduler Assistant	D852	\$	42.98	\$	45.14	\$	47.41	\$	49.82	\$	52.32	\$	54.91	\$	57.64
Facilities Maintenance Technician	D870	\$	42.98	\$	45.14	\$	47.41	\$	49.82	\$	52.32	\$	54.91	\$	57.64
Water Quality Specialist *	D360	\$	54.06	\$	57.36	\$	60.92	\$	64.61	\$	68.58	\$	72.79	\$	76.44
Senior Laboratory Analyst **	D305	\$	62.89	\$	66.04	\$	69.34	\$	72.79	\$	76.44		-		-
Laboratory Analyst II	D303	\$	57.18	\$	60.05	\$	63.04	\$	66.20	\$	69.49		-		-
Laboratory Analyst I	D301	\$	51.98	\$	54.57	\$	57.30	\$	60.17	\$	63.18		-		-
Senior Environmental Compliance Inspector *	D351	\$	57.04	\$	59.90	\$	62.89	\$	66.04	\$	69.34		-		-
Environmental Compliance Inspector	D353	\$	51.86	\$	54.45	\$	57.18	\$	60.05	\$	63.04		-		-
Pollution Prevention Specialist	D355	\$	51.86	\$	54.45	\$	57.18	\$	60.05	\$	63.04		-		-
Materials Specialist	D703	\$	55.37	\$	58.22	\$	61.18	\$	64.18	\$	67.39		-		-
Utility Worker	D850	\$	39.79	\$	41.99	\$	44.28	\$	46.73	\$	49.29		-		-
Class 1 Positions	Codes		A1		B1		C1		D1		E1		F1		G1
Senior Operator	D131	\$	59.16	\$	62.08	\$	65.18	\$	68.47	\$	72.61	\$	75.49	\$	79.24
Operator	D401	\$	47.28	\$	49.67	\$	52.10	\$	54.74	\$	57.54	\$	60.38	\$	63.38
Senior Plant Mechanic	D201	\$	57.00	\$	59.88	\$	62.85	\$	65.95	\$	69.30	\$	72.75	\$	76.40
Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician	D251	\$	60.93	\$	64.00	\$	67.16	\$	70.52	\$	74.09	\$	77.78	\$	81.68
Senior Instrumentation Technician	D231	\$	60.93	\$	64.00	\$	67.16	\$	70 E2	\$	74.09		77.78	\$	81.68
Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician	D261								10.02			3			
	DZOI	\$	63.97	\$	67.19	\$		s	70.52 74.05	\$	77.80	\$	81.67	\$	85.76
Plant Mechanic		-		-	67.19	\$	70.53	\$	74.05	-	77.80	\$	81.67	_	
Plant Mechanic Plant Mechanic - Electrician	D451	\$	43.84	\$	67.19 46.05	\$ \$	70.53 48.36	\$ \$	74.05 50.80	\$	77.80 53.38	\$ \$	81.67 56.02	\$	58.80
Plant Mechanic - Electrician		-		-	67.19 46.05	\$	70.53 48.36	\$	74.05	-	77.80	\$	81.67	_	
Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician	D451 D461	\$	43.84 43.84	\$	67.19 46.05 46.05	\$ \$ \$	70.53 48.36 48.36	\$ \$ \$	74.05 50.80 50.80	\$	77.80 53.38 53.38	\$ \$ \$	81.67 56.02 56.02	\$ \$	58.80 58.80
Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician	D451 D461 D441	\$ \$	43.84 43.84 43.84	\$ \$ \$ \$	67.19 46.05 46.05 46.05	\$ \$ \$	70.53 48.36 48.36 48.36	\$ \$ \$	74.05 50.80 50.80 50.80	\$ \$	77.80 53.38 53.38 53.38	\$ \$ \$	81.67 56.02 56.02 56.02 58.82	\$ \$	58.80 58.80 58.80
Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant	D451 D461 D441 D471 D853	\$ \$ \$ \$	43.84 43.84 43.84 46.04 43.84	\$ \$ \$ \$	67.19 46.05 46.05 46.05 48.35 46.05	\$ \$ \$ \$	70.53 48.36 48.36 48.36 50.78 48.36	\$ \$ \$ \$	74.05 50.80 50.80 50.80 53.35 50.80	\$ \$ \$ \$	77.80 53.38 53.38 53.38 56.04 53.38	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	81.67 56.02 56.02 56.02 58.82 56.02	\$ \$ \$ \$	58.80 58.80 58.80 61.74 58.80
Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician	D451 D461 D441 D471	\$ \$ \$ \$	43.84 43.84 43.84 46.04	\$ \$ \$ \$	67.19 46.05 46.05 46.05 48.35	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	70.53 48.36 48.36 48.36 50.78	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	74.05 50.80 50.80 50.80 53.35	\$ \$ \$ \$	77.80 53.38 53.38 53.38 56.04	\$ \$ \$ \$	81.67 56.02 56.02 56.02 58.82	\$ \$ \$ \$	58.80 58.80 58.80 61.74
Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant	D451 D461 D441 D471 D853 D871	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	43.84 43.84 43.84 46.04 43.84 43.84	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	67.19 46.05 46.05 46.05 48.35 46.05 46.05	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	70.53 48.36 48.36 48.36 50.78 48.36 48.36	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	74.05 50.80 50.80 50.80 53.35 50.80	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	77.80 53.38 53.38 53.38 56.04 53.38 53.38	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	81.67 56.02 56.02 58.82 56.02 56.02	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	58.80 58.80 58.80 61.74 58.80 58.80
Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist *	D451 D461 D441 D471 D853 D871 D361	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	43.84 43.84 46.04 43.84 43.84 55.14	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	67.19 46.05 46.05 46.05 48.35 46.05 46.05 58.50 67.35	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	70.53 48.36 48.36 48.36 50.78 48.36 48.36 62.16 70.72	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	74.05 50.80 50.80 50.80 53.35 50.80 50.80 65.92	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	77.80 53.38 53.38 53.38 56.04 53.38 53.38 69.96	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	81.67 56.02 56.02 58.82 56.02 56.02	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	58.80 58.80 58.80 61.74 58.80 58.80
Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist * Senior Laboratory Analyst ** Laboratory Analyst II	D451 D461 D441 D471 D853 D871 D361 D306	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	43.84 43.84 46.04 43.84 43.84 55.14 64.15	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	67.19 46.05 46.05 46.05 48.35 46.05 46.05 58.50 67.35 61.24	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	70.53 48.36 48.36 48.36 50.78 48.36 48.36 62.16 70.72	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	74.05 50.80 50.80 53.35 50.80 50.80 65.92 74.25 67.51	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	77.80 53.38 53.38 53.38 56.04 53.38 53.38 69.96 77.97	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	81.67 56.02 56.02 58.82 56.02 56.02	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	58.80 58.80 58.80 61.74 58.80 58.80
Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist * Senior Laboratory Analyst **	D451 D461 D441 D471 D853 D871 D361 D306 D304	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	43.84 43.84 46.04 43.84 43.84 55.14 64.15 58.32	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	67.19 46.05 46.05 46.05 48.35 46.05 46.05 58.50 67.35 61.24 55.68	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	70.53 48.36 48.36 50.78 48.36 48.36 62.16 70.72 64.30	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	74.05 50.80 50.80 50.80 53.35 50.80 50.80 65.92 74.25	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	77.80 53.38 53.38 56.04 53.38 53.38 69.96 77.97 70.88	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	81.67 56.02 56.02 58.82 56.02 56.02	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	58.80 58.80 58.80 61.74 58.80 58.80
Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist * Senior Laboratory Analyst ** Laboratory Analyst II Laboratory Analyst I	D451 D461 D441 D471 D853 D871 D361 D306 D304 D302	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	43.84 43.84 46.04 43.84 43.84 55.14 64.15 58.32 53.02	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	67.19 46.05 46.05 46.05 48.35 46.05 46.05 58.50 67.35 61.24 55.68	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	70.53 48.36 48.36 50.78 48.36 48.36 62.16 70.72 64.30 58.45	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	74.05 50.80 50.80 53.35 50.80 50.80 65.92 74.25 67.51 61.38	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	77.80 53.38 53.38 56.04 53.38 53.38 69.96 77.97 70.88 64.45	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	81.67 56.02 56.02 58.82 56.02 56.02	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	58.80 58.80 58.80 61.74 58.80 58.80
Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist * Senior Laboratory Analyst ** Laboratory Analyst II Laboratory Analyst II Senior Environmental Compliance Inspector * Environmental Compliance Inspector	D451 D461 D441 D471 D853 D871 D361 D306 D304 D302 D352	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	43.84 43.84 46.04 43.84 43.84 55.14 64.15 58.32 53.02 58.16 52.91	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	67.19 46.05 46.05 48.35 46.05 46.05 58.50 67.35 61.24 55.68 61.10	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	70.53 48.36 48.36 48.36 50.78 48.36 48.36 62.16 70.72 64.30 58.45 64.15	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	74.05 50.80 50.80 50.80 53.35 50.80 65.92 74.25 67.51 61.38 67.35	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	77.80 53.38 53.38 56.04 53.38 53.38 69.96 77.97 70.88 64.45 70.72 64.30	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	81.67 56.02 56.02 58.82 56.02 56.02	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	58.80 58.80 58.80 61.74 58.80 58.80
Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist * Senior Laboratory Analyst ** Laboratory Analyst II Laboratory Analyst I Senior Environmental Compliance Inspector *	D451 D461 D441 D471 D853 D871 D361 D306 D304 D302 D352	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	43.84 43.84 46.04 43.84 43.84 55.14 64.15 58.32 53.02 58.16	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	67.19 46.05 46.05 48.35 46.05 46.05 58.50 67.35 61.24 55.68 61.10	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	70.53 48.36 48.36 48.36 50.78 48.36 48.36 62.16 70.72 64.30 58.45 64.15	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	74.05 50.80 50.80 50.80 53.35 50.80 65.92 74.25 67.51 61.38 67.35	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	77.80 53.38 53.38 56.04 53.38 53.38 69.96 77.97 70.88 64.45 70.72	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	81.67 56.02 56.02 58.82 56.02 56.02	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	58.80 58.80 58.80 61.74 58.80 58.80

Class 0 - Employees not eligible for certification pay.

Utility Worker

Class 1 - Employees achieving professional certification higher than specified for current classification qualify for certification pa y per CLASS 1 salary schedule

^{*} Salary step "G" available only to Water Quality Specialists in Environmental Compliance Division as of 7/1/2013. Promotions to Snr Environmental Compliance Inspector limited to only one person in the position at any given time. The Water Quality Specialist classification not available to new hires after June 30, 2013.

^{**} There shall be only one person in the position of Senior Laboratory Analyst at any given time.

Silicon Valley Clean Water Negotiated Pay Scale Stationary Engineers Local 39

Fiscal Year: 2025-26
Cost-of-Living Adjustment 4.0%

General Represented Employees (hourly)			••		-										
Class 0 Positions Senior Operator	D130	\$	A0 60.31	\$	B0 63.33	\$	C0 66.46	\$	D0 69.80	\$	E0 74.04	\$	F0 76.97	\$	G0 80.81
Operator	D400	\$	48.20	\$	50.64	5	53.13	\$	55.82	\$	58.66	\$	61.58	\$	64.62
Senior Plant Mechanic	D200	\$	58.13	\$	61.05	\$	64.07	\$	67.25	\$	70.66	\$	74.17	\$	77.91
Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician	D250	\$	62.13	\$	65.24	\$	68.49	\$	71.91	\$	75.55	\$	79.31	\$	83.28 83.28
Senior Instrumentation Technician	D230	\$	62.13	\$		\$	68.49	\$	71.91	\$	75.55	\$	79.31	\$	
Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician	D260	\$	65.23	\$	68.53	\$	71.92	\$	75.49	\$	79.32	\$	83.27	\$	87.44
Plant Mechanic	D450	\$	44.70	\$	46.95	\$	49.31	\$	51.81	\$	54.41	\$	57.11	\$	59.95
Plant Mechanic - Electrician	D460	\$	44.70	\$		\$	49.31	\$	51.81	\$	54.41	\$	57.11	\$	59.95
Instrumentation Technician	D440	\$	44.70	\$		\$	49.31	\$	51.81	\$	54.41	\$	57.11	\$	59.95
Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician	D470	\$	46.94	\$	49.30	\$	51.77	\$	54.39	\$	57.15	\$	59.97	\$	62.95
Planner / Scheduler Assistant	D852	\$	44.70	\$	46.95	\$	49.31	\$	51.81	\$	54.41	\$	57.11	\$	59.95
Facilities Maintenance Technician	D870	\$	44.70	\$	46.95	\$	49.31	\$	51.81	\$	54.41	\$	57.11	\$	59.95
Water Quality Specialist *	D360	\$	56.22	\$	59.65	\$	63.36	\$	67.19	\$	71.32	\$	75.70	\$	79.50
Senior Laboratory Analyst **	D305	\$	65.41	\$	68.68	\$	72.11	\$	75.70	\$	79.50		-		-
Laboratory Analyst II	D303	\$	59.47	\$	62.45	\$	65.56	\$	68.85	\$	72.27		-		-
Laboratory Analyst I	D301	\$	54.06	\$	56.75	\$	59.59	\$	62.58	\$	65.71		-		-
Senior Environmental Compliance Inspector *	D351	\$	59.32	\$	62.30	\$	65.41	\$	68.68	\$	72 11		-		-
Environmental Compliance Inspector	D353	\$	53.93	\$	56.63	\$	59.47	\$	62.4 5	\$	65.56		-		-
Pollution Prevention Specialist	D355	\$	53.93	\$	56.63	\$	59.47	\$	62.45	\$	65.56		-		-
Materials Specialist	D703	\$	57.58	\$	60.55	\$	63.63	\$	66.75	\$	70.09		-		-
Utility Worker	D850	\$	41.38	\$	43.67	\$	46.05	\$	48.60	\$	51.26		-		-
Class 1 Positions	Codes		A1		B1		C1		D1		E1		F1		G1
Senior Operator	D131	\$	61.53	\$	64.56	\$	67.79	\$	71.21	\$	75.51	\$	78.51	\$	8241
Operator	D401	\$	49.17	\$	51.66	\$	54.18	\$	56.93	\$	59.84	\$	62.80	\$	65.92
Senior Plant Mechanic	D201	\$	59.28	\$		\$	65.36	\$	68.59	\$	72.07	\$	75.66	\$	79.46
Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician	D251	\$	63.37	\$	66.56	5	69.85	\$	73.34	\$	77.05	\$	80.89	\$	84.95
Senior Instrumentation Technician	D231	\$	63.37	\$		5		\$	73.34	\$	77.05	\$	80.89	\$	84.95
	D261	\$	66.53	\$	69.88	\$	73.35	\$	77.01	\$	80.91	\$	84.94	\$	89.19
Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician	D451	\$		\$		5	50.29	\$	52.83	\$	55.52	5		\$	61 15
Plant Mechanic	D431	•				•	3U 29	•		•	33.3Z	•	58.26	\$	
	D 404		45.59	-	47.89					•	FF F0		E0.00		61.15
Plant Mechanic - Electrician	D461	\$	45.59	\$	47.89	\$	50.29	\$	52.83	\$	55.52	\$	58.26		04.45
Instrumentation Technician	D441	\$	45.59 45.59	\$	47.89 47.89	\$	50.29 50.29	\$	52.83 52.83	\$	55.52	\$	58.26	\$	61.15
Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician	D441 D471	\$ \$	45.59 45.59 47.88	\$ \$ \$	47.89 47.89 50.28	\$ \$	50.29 50.29 52.81	\$ \$	52.83 52.83 55.48	\$	55.52 58.28	\$ \$	58.26 61.17	\$ \$	64.21
Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant	D441 D471 D853	\$ \$	45.59 45.59 47.88 45.59	\$ \$ \$	47.89 47.89 50.28 47.89	\$ \$	50.29 50.29 52.81 50.29	\$ \$ \$	52.83 52.83 55.48 52.83	\$ \$	55.52 58.28 55.52	\$ \$	58.26 61.17 58.26	\$ \$	64.21 61.15
Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician	D441 D471 D853 D871	\$ \$ \$ \$	45.59 45.59 47.88 45.59 45.59	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	47.89 47.89 50.28 47.89 47.89	\$ \$ \$ \$	50.29 50.29 52.81 50.29 50.29	\$ \$ \$ \$	52.83 52.83 55.48 52.83 52.83	\$ \$ \$ \$	55.52 58.28 55.52 55.52	\$ \$ \$ \$	58.26 61.17 58.26 58.26	\$ \$ \$ \$	64.21 61.15 61.15
Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist *	D441 D471 D853 D871 D361	\$ \$ \$ \$	45.59 45.59 47.88 45.59 45.59 57.35	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	47.89 47.89 50.28 47.89 47.89 60.84	\$ \$ \$ \$	50.29 50.29 52.81 50.29 50.29 64.65	\$ \$ \$ \$	52.83 52.83 55.48 52.83 52.83 68.56	\$ \$ \$ \$	55.52 58.28 55.52 55.52 72.76	\$ \$	58.26 61.17 58.26	\$ \$	64.21 61.15
Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician	D441 D471 D853 D871 D361 D306	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	45.59 45.59 47.88 45.59 45.59 57.35 66.72	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	47.89 47.89 50.28 47.89 47.89 60.84 70.04	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	50.29 50.29 52.81 50.29 50.29 64.65 73.55	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	52.83 52.83 55.48 52.83 52.83 68.56 77.22	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	55.52 58.28 55.52 55.52 72.76 81.09	\$ \$ \$ \$	58.26 61.17 58.26 58.26	\$ \$ \$ \$	64.21 61.15 61.15
Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist *	D441 D471 D853 D871 D361 D306 D304	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	45.59 45.59 47.88 45.59 45.59 57.35	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	47.89 47.89 50.28 47.89 47.89 60.84 70.04 63.69	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	50.29 50.29 52.81 50.29 50.29 64.65	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	52.83 52.83 55.48 52.83 52.83 68.56 77.22 70.21	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	55.52 58.28 55.52 55.52 72.76	\$ \$ \$ \$	58.26 61.17 58.26 58.26	\$ \$ \$ \$	64.21 61.15 61.15
Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist * Senior Laboratory Analyst **	D441 D471 D853 D871 D361 D306	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	45.59 45.59 47.88 45.59 45.59 57.35 66.72	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	47.89 47.89 50.28 47.89 47.89 60.84 70.04 63.69	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	50.29 50.29 52.81 50.29 50.29 64.65 73.55	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	52.83 52.83 55.48 52.83 52.83 68.56 77.22	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	55.52 58.28 55.52 55.52 72.76 81.09	\$ \$ \$ \$	58.26 61.17 58.26 58.26	\$ \$ \$ \$	64.21 61.15 61.15
Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist * Senior Laboratory Analyst ** Laboratory Analyst II	D441 D471 D853 D871 D361 D306 D304	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	45.59 45.59 47.88 45.59 45.59 57.35 66.72 60.65	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	47.89 47.89 50.28 47.89 47.89 60.84 70.04 63.69	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	50.29 50.29 52.81 50.29 50.29 64.65 73.55 66.87	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	52.83 52.83 55.48 52.83 52.83 68.56 77.22 70.21	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	55.52 58.28 55.52 55.52 72.76 81.09 73.72	\$ \$ \$ \$	58.26 61.17 58.26 58.26	\$ \$ \$ \$	64.21 61.15 61.15
Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist * Senior Laboratory Analyst ** Laboratory Analyst II Laboratory Analyst I	D441 D471 D853 D871 D361 D306 D304 D302	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	45.59 45.59 47.88 45.59 45.59 57.35 66.72 60.65 55.14	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	47.89 47.89 50.28 47.89 47.89 60.84 70.04 63.69 57.91 63.54	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	50.29 50.29 52.81 50.29 50.29 64.65 73.55 66.87 60.79	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	52.83 52.83 55.48 52.83 52.83 68.56 77.22 70.21 63.84	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	55.52 58.28 55.52 55.52 72.76 81.09 73.72 67.03	\$ \$ \$ \$	58.26 61.17 58.26 58.26	\$ \$ \$ \$	64.21 61.15 61.15
Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist * Senior Laboratory Analyst ** Laboratory Analyst II Laboratory Analyst I Senior Environmental Compliance Inspector *	D441 D471 D853 D871 D361 D306 D304 D302 D352	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	45.59 45.59 47.88 45.59 45.59 57.35 66.72 60.65 55.14 60.49	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	47.89 47.89 50.28 47.89 47.89 60.84 70.04 63.69 57.91 63.54	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	50.29 50.29 52.81 50.29 50.29 64.65 73.55 66.87 60.79 66.72	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	52.83 52.83 55.48 52.83 52.83 68.56 77.22 70.21 63.84 70.04	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	55.52 58.28 55.52 55.52 72.76 81.09 73.72 67.03 73.55	\$ \$ \$ \$	58.26 61.17 58.26 58.26	\$ \$ \$ \$	64.21 61.15 61.15

Class 0 - Employees not eligible for certification pay.

Utility Worker

Class 1 - Employees achieving professional certification higher than specified for current classification qualify for certification pa y per CLASS 1 salary schedule

^{*} Salary step "G" available only to Water Quality Specialists in Environmental Compliance Division as of 7/1/2013. Promotions to Snr Environmental Compliance Inspector limited to only one person in the position at any given time. The Water Quality Specialist classification not available to new hires after June 30, 2013.

^{**} There shall be only one person in the position of Senior Laboratory Analyst at any given time.

Silicon Valley Clean Water Negotiated Pay Scale

Fiscal Year: 2026-27 Stationary Engineers Local 39 Cost-of-Living Adjustment 3.5%

General Represented Employees (hourly) Class 0 Positions	Codes		A0		B0		C0		D0		E0		FO		GO
Senior Operator	D130	\$	62.42	\$	65.55	\$	68.79	\$	72.24	\$	76.63	\$	79.66	\$	83.64
Operator	D400	\$	49.89	\$	52.41	\$	54.99	\$	57.77	\$	60.71	\$	63.74	\$	66.88
Senior Plant Mechanic	D200	\$	60.16	\$	63.19	\$	66.31	\$	69.60	\$	73.13	\$	76.77	\$	80.64
Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician	D250	\$	64.30	\$	67.52	\$	70.89	\$	74.43	\$	78.19	\$	82.09	\$	86.19
Senior Instrumentation Technician	D230	\$	64.30	\$	67.52	\$	70.89	\$	74.43	\$	78.19	\$	82.09	\$	86.19
Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician	D260	\$	67.51	\$	70.93	\$	74.44	\$	78.13	\$	82 10	\$	86.18	\$	90.50
Plant Mechanic	D450	\$	46.26	\$	48.59	\$	51.04	\$	53.62	\$	56.31	\$	59.11	\$	62.05
Plant Mechanic - Electrician	D460	\$	46.26	\$	48.59	\$	51.04	\$	53.62	\$	56.31	\$	59.11	\$	62.05
Instrumentation Technician	D440	\$	46.26	\$	48.59	\$	51.04	\$	53.62	\$	56.31	\$	59.11	\$	62.05
Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician	D470	\$	48.58	\$	51.03	\$	53.58	\$	56.29	\$	59.15	\$	62.07	\$	65.15
Planner / Scheduler Assistant	D852	\$	46.26	\$	48.59	\$	51.04	\$	53.62	\$	56.31	\$	59.11	\$	62.05
Facilities Maintenance Technician	D870	\$	46.26	\$	48.59	\$	51.04	\$	53.62	\$	56.31	\$	59.11	\$	62.05
Water Quality Specialist *	D360	\$	58.19	\$	61.74	\$	65.58	\$	69.54	\$	73.82	\$	78.35	\$	82.28
Senior Laboratory Analyst **	D305	\$	67.70	\$	71.08	\$	74.63	\$	78.35	\$	82.28		-		-
Laboratory Analyst II	D303	\$	61.55	\$	64.64	\$	67.85	\$	71.26	\$	74.80		-		_
Laboratory Analyst I	D301	\$	55.95	\$	58.74	\$	61.68	\$	64.77	\$	68.01		-		-
Senior Environmental Compliance Inspector *	D351	\$	61.40	\$	64.48	\$	67.70	\$	71.08	\$	74.63		-		-
Environmental Compliance Inspector	D353	\$	55.82	\$	58.61	\$	61.55	\$	64.64	\$	67.85		-		-
Pollution Prevention Specialist	D355	\$	55.82	\$	58.61	\$	61.55	\$	64.64	\$	67.85		-		-
Materials Specialist	D703	\$	59.60	\$	62.67	\$	65.86	\$	69.09	\$	72.54		-		-
Utility Worker	D850	\$	42.83	\$	45.20	\$	47.66	\$	50.30	\$	53.05		-		-
Ol 4 D	0-4		A1		B1				D1		-4				
Class 1 Positions	Codes						C1				E1		F1		G1
Sonior Operator		¢		•		¢	70.16	¢		¢		4	81 26	•	85.20
•	D131	\$	63.68	\$	66.82	\$	70.16 56.08	\$	73.70	\$	78.1 5	\$	81.26 65.00	\$	85.29 68.23
Operator	D131 D401	\$	63.68 50.89	\$	66.82 53.47	\$	56.08	\$	73.70 58.92	\$	78.15 61.93	\$	65.00	\$	68.23
Operator Senior Plant Mechanic	D131 D401 D201	\$ \$	63.68 50.89 61.35	\$ \$	66.82 53.47 64.46	\$ \$	56.08 67.65	\$ \$	73.70 58.92 70.99	\$	78.15 61.93 74.59	\$ \$	65.00 78.31	\$ \$	68.23 82.24
Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician	D131 D401 D201 D251	\$ \$	63.68 50.89 61.35 65.59	\$ \$	66.82 53.47 64.46 68.89	\$ \$	56.08 67.65 72.29	\$ \$	73.70 58.92 70.99 75.91	\$ \$ \$	78.15 61.93 74.59 79.75	\$ \$	65.00 78.31 83.72	\$ \$	68.23 82.24 87.92
Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Instrumentation Technician	D131 D401 D201 D251 D231	\$ \$ \$	63.68 50.89 61.35 65.59 65.59	\$ \$ \$	66.82 53.47 64.46 68.89 68.89	\$ \$ \$ \$	56.08 67.65 72.29 72.29	\$ \$ \$	73.70 58.92 70.99 75.91 75.91	\$ \$ \$	78.15 61.93 74.59 79.75 79.75	\$ \$ \$	65.00 78.31 83.72 83.72	\$ \$ \$	68.23 82.24 87.92 87.92
Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Instrumentation Technician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician	D131 D401 D201 D251 D231 D261	\$ \$ \$ \$	63.68 50.89 61.35 65.59 65.59 68.86	\$ \$ \$ \$	66.82 53.47 64.46 68.89 68.89 72.33	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	56.08 67.65 72.29 72.29 75.92	\$ \$ \$ \$	73.70 58.92 70.99 75.91 75.91 79.71	\$ \$ \$ \$	78.15 61.93 74.59 79.75 79.75 83.74	\$ \$ \$ \$	65.00 78.31 83.72 83.72 87.91	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	68.23 82.24 87.92 87.92 92.31
Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Instrumentation Technician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic	D131 D401 D201 D251 D231 D261 D451	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	63.68 50.89 61.35 65.59 65.59 68.86 47.19	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	66.82 53.47 64.46 68.89 68.89 72.33 49.57	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	56.08 67.65 72.29 72.29 75.92 52.05	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	73.70 58.92 70.99 75.91 75.91 79.71 54.68	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	78.15 61.93 74.59 79.75 79.75 83.74 57.46	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.00 78.31 83.72 83.72 87.91 60.30	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	68.23 82.24 87.92 87.92 92.31 63.29
Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Instrumentation Technician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic Plant Mechanic	D131 D401 D201 D251 D231 D261 D451 D461	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	63.68 50.89 61.35 65.59 65.59 68.86 47.19	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	66.82 53.47 64.46 68.89 68.89 72.33 49.57	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	56.08 67.65 72.29 72.29 75.92 52.05 52.05	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	73.70 58.92 70.99 75.91 75.91 79.71 54.68 54.68	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	78.15 61.93 74.59 79.75 79.75 83.74 57.46 57.46	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.00 78.31 83.72 83.72 87.91 60.30 60.30	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	68.23 82.24 87.92 87.92 92.31 63.29 63.29
Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Instrumentation Technician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic Plant Mechanic Instrumentation Technician	D131 D401 D201 D251 D231 D261 D451 D461 D441	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	63.68 50.89 61.35 65.59 65.59 68.86 47.19 47.19	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	66.82 53.47 64.46 68.89 68.89 72.33 49.57 49.57	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	56.08 67.65 72.29 72.29 75.92 52.05 52.05	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	73.70 58.92 70.99 75.91 75.91 79.71 54.68 54.68	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	78.15 61.93 74.59 79.75 79.75 83.74 57.46 57.46	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.00 78.31 83.72 83.72 87.91 60.30 60.30	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	68.23 82.24 87.92 87.92 92.31 63.29 63.29
Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Instrumentation Technician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic Plant Mechanic Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Electrician	D131 D401 D201 D251 D231 D261 D451 D461 D441 D471	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	63.68 50.89 61.35 65.59 65.59 68.86 47.19 47.19 49.56	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	66.82 53.47 64.46 68.89 68.89 72.33 49.57 49.57 49.57	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	56.08 67.65 72.29 72.29 75.92 52.05 52.05 52.05 54.66	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	73.70 58.92 70.99 75.91 75.91 79.71 54.68 54.68 57.42	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	78.15 61.93 74.59 79.75 79.75 83.74 57.46 57.46 60.32	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.00 78.31 83.72 83.72 87.91 60.30 60.30 60.30 63.31	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	68.23 82.24 87.92 87.92 92.31 63.29 63.29 63.29 66.46
Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Instrumentation Technician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planter / Scheduler Assistant	D131 D401 D201 D251 D231 D261 D451 D461 D441 D471 D853	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	63.68 50.89 61.35 65.59 68.86 47.19 47.19 49.56 47.19	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	66.82 53.47 64.46 68.89 68.89 72.33 49.57 49.57 49.57 52.04	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	56.08 67.65 72.29 72.29 75.92 52.05 52.05 52.05 54.66 52.05	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	73.70 58.92 70.99 75.91 75.91 79.71 54.68 54.68 57.42 54.68	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	78 15 61.93 74 59 79 75 79 75 83 74 57.46 57.46 60.32 57.46	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.00 78.31 83.72 83.72 87.91 60.30 60.30 63.31 60.30	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	68.23 82.24 87.92 87.92 92.31 63.29 63.29 66.46 63.29
Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Instrumentation Technician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Plant Mechanic - Plant Mechanic Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plantmer / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician	D131 D401 D201 D251 D251 D261 D451 D461 D461 D441 D471 D853 D871	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	63.68 50.89 61.35 65.59 65.59 68.86 47.19 47.19 49.56 47.19	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	66.82 53.47 64.46 68.89 68.89 72.33 49.57 49.57 49.57 52.04 49.57	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	56.08 67.65 72.29 72.29 75.92 52.05 52.05 54.66 52.05 52.05	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	73.70 58.92 70.99 75.91 75.91 79.71 54.68 54.68 57.42 54.68 54.68	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	78 15 61.93 74.59 79.75 79.75 83.74 57.46 57.46 60.32 57.46 57.46	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.00 78.31 83.72 83.72 87.91 60.30 60.30 63.31 60.30 60.30	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	68.23 82.24 87.92 87.92 92.31 63.29 63.29 66.46 63.29 63.29
Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Instrumentation Technician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planter / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist *	D131 D401 D201 D251 D251 D261 D451 D461 D461 D471 D853 D871 D361	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	63.68 50.89 61.35 65.59 65.59 68.86 47.19 47.19 49.56 47.19 59.36	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	66.82 53.47 64.46 68.89 68.89 72.33 49.57 49.57 49.57 49.57 62.97	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	56.08 67.65 72.29 72.29 75.92 52.05 52.05 54.66 52.05 52.05 52.05 66.91	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	73.70 58.92 70.99 75.91 75.91 79.71 54.68 54.68 57.42 54.68 57.42 54.68 70.96	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	78 15 61.93 74 59 79.75 79.75 83.74 57.46 57.46 60.32 57.46 57.46 75.31	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.00 78.31 83.72 83.72 87.91 60.30 60.30 63.31 60.30	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	68.23 82.24 87.92 87.92 92.31 63.29 63.29 66.46 63.29
Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Instrumentation Technician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planter / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist * Senior Laboratory Analyst **	D131 D401 D201 D251 D251 D261 D451 D461 D441 D471 D853 D871 D361 D306	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	63.68 50.89 61.35 65.59 68.86 47.19 47.19 47.19 47.19 47.19 59.36 69.06	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	66.82 53.47 64.46 68.89 68.89 72.33 49.57 49.57 49.57 52.04 49.57 49.57 62.97 72.49	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	56.08 67.65 72.29 72.29 75.92 52.05 52.05 54.66 52.05 52.05 66.91 76.12	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	73.70 58.92 70.99 75.91 75.91 79.71 54.68 54.68 57.42 54.68 70.96 79.92	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	78 15 61.93 74 59 79.75 79.75 83.74 57.46 57.46 60.32 57.46 57.46 75.31 83.93	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.00 78.31 83.72 83.72 87.91 60.30 60.30 63.31 60.30 60.30	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	68.23 82.24 87.92 87.92 92.31 63.29 63.29 66.46 63.29 63.29
Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Instrumentation Technician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist * Senior Laboratory Analyst II	D131 D401 D201 D251 D251 D261 D461 D461 D441 D471 D853 D871 D361 D306	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	63.68 50.89 61.35 65.59 65.59 68.86 47.19 47.19 47.19 49.56 47.19 59.36 69.06 62.77	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	66.82 53.47 64.46 68.89 68.89 72.33 49.57 49.57 49.57 52.04 49.57 62.97 72.49 65.92	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	56.08 67.65 72.29 75.92 52.05 52.05 52.05 52.05 52.05 52.05 66.91 76.12 69.21	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	73.70 58.92 70.99 75.91 75.91 79.71 54.68 54.68 54.68 57.42 54.68 70.96 79.92 72.67	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	78 15 61.93 74 59 79 75 79 75 83.74 57.46 57.46 60.32 57.46 75.31 83 93 76 30	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.00 78.31 83.72 83.72 87.91 60.30 60.30 63.31 60.30 60.30	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	68.23 82.24 87.92 87.92 92.31 63.29 63.29 66.46 63.29 63.29
Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planter / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist * Senior Laboratory Analyst II Laboratory Analyst II	D131 D401 D201 D251 D251 D261 D461 D461 D441 D471 D853 D871 D361 D306 D304 D302	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	63.68 50.89 61.35 65.59 65.59 68.86 47.19 47.19 49.56 47.19 59.36 69.06 62.77 57.07	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	66.82 53.47 64.46 68.89 68.89 72.33 49.57 49.57 49.57 52.04 49.57 62.97 72.49 65.92 59.94	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	56.08 67.65 72.29 75.92 52.05 52.05 52.05 52.05 52.05 52.05 66.91 76.12 69.21 62.92	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	73.70 58.92 70.99 75.91 75.91 79.71 54.68 54.68 57.42 54.68 70.96 79.92 72.67 66.07	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	78 15 61.93 74 59 79 75 79 75 83.74 57.46 57.46 60.32 57.46 75.31 83 93 76 30 69 38	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.00 78.31 83.72 83.72 87.91 60.30 60.30 63.31 60.30 60.30	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	68.23 82.24 87.92 87.92 92.31 63.29 63.29 66.46 63.29 63.29
Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planter / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist * Senior Laboratory Analyst I Laboratory Analyst II Laboratory Analyst I Senior Environmental Compliance Inspector *	D131 D401 D201 D251 D251 D261 D461 D461 D441 D471 D853 D871 D361 D306 D304 D302 D352	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	63.68 50.89 61.35 65.59 65.59 68.86 47.19 47.19 49.56 47.19 59.36 69.06 62.77 57.07 62.61	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	66.82 53.47 64.46 68.89 68.89 72.33 49.57 49.57 49.57 52.04 49.57 62.97 72.49 65.92 59.94 65.76	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	56.08 67.65 72.29 75.92 52.05 52.05 52.05 52.05 52.05 66.91 76.12 69.21 62.92 69.06	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	73.70 58.92 70.99 75.91 75.91 79.71 54.68 54.68 54.68 57.42 54.68 70.96 79.92 72.67 66.07 72.49	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	78 15 61.93 74 59 79 75 79 75 83.74 57.46 57.46 60.32 57.46 75.31 83 93 76 30 69 38 76 12	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.00 78.31 83.72 83.72 87.91 60.30 60.30 63.31 60.30 60.30	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	68.23 82.24 87.92 87.92 92.31 63.29 63.29 66.46 63.29 63.29
Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Bectrician Senior Plant Mechanic - Bectrician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Bectrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planter / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist * Senior Laboratory Analyst II Laboratory Analyst II Senior Environmental Compliance Inspector * Environmental Compliance Inspector	D131 D401 D201 D251 D251 D231 D261 D451 D461 D4471 D853 D871 D361 D306 D304 D302 D352	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	63.68 50.89 61.35 65.59 65.59 68.86 47.19 47.19 49.56 47.19 59.36 69.06 62.77 57.07 62.61 56.96	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	66.82 53.47 64.46 68.89 68.89 72.33 49.57 49.57 52.04 49.57 62.97 72.49 65.92 59.94 65.76	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	56.08 67.65 72.29 75.92 52.05 52.05 52.05 52.05 52.05 66.91 76.12 69.21 62.92 69.06	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	73.70 58.92 70.99 75.91 75.91 79.71 54.68 54.68 54.68 57.42 54.68 70.96 79.92 72.67 66.07 72.49	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	78 15 61.93 74 59 79 75 79 75 83.74 57.46 57.46 60.32 57.46 75.31 83.93 76.30 69.38 76.12	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.00 78.31 83.72 83.72 87.91 60.30 60.30 63.31 60.30 60.30	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	68.23 82.24 87.92 87.92 92.31 63.29 63.29 66.46 63.29 63.29
Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planter / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist * Senior Laboratory Analyst II Laboratory Analyst II Senior Environmental Compliance Inspector * Environmental Compliance Inspector Pollution Prevention Specialist	D131 D401 D201 D251 D251 D231 D261 D451 D461 D471 D853 D871 D361 D306 D304 D302 D352 D354 D356	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	63.68 50.89 61.35 65.59 65.59 68.86 47.19 47.19 49.56 47.19 59.36 69.06 62.77 57.07 62.61 56.96 56.96	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	66.82 53.47 64.46 68.89 68.89 72.33 49.57 49.57 52.04 49.57 62.97 72.49 65.92 59.94 65.76 59.78	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	56.08 67.65 72.29 75.92 52.05 52.05 52.05 52.05 52.05 66.91 76.12 69.21 62.92 69.06 62.77	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	73.70 58.92 70.99 75.91 75.91 79.71 54.68 54.68 54.68 57.42 54.68 70.96 79.92 72.67 66.07 72.49 65.92	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	78 15 61.93 74 59 79 75 79 75 83.74 57.46 57.46 60.32 57.46 75.31 83.93 76.30 69.38 76.12 69.21	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.00 78.31 83.72 83.72 87.91 60.30 60.30 63.31 60.30 60.30	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	68.23 82.24 87.92 87.92 92.31 63.29 63.29 66.46 63.29 63.29
Senior Operator Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Instrumentation Technici	D131 D401 D201 D251 D251 D231 D261 D451 D461 D4471 D853 D871 D361 D306 D304 D302 D352	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	63.68 50.89 61.35 65.59 65.59 68.86 47.19 47.19 49.56 47.19 59.36 69.06 62.77 57.07 62.61 56.96	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	66.82 53.47 64.46 68.89 68.89 72.33 49.57 49.57 52.04 49.57 62.97 72.49 65.92 59.94 65.76	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	56.08 67.65 72.29 75.92 52.05 52.05 52.05 52.05 52.05 66.91 76.12 69.21 62.92 69.06	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	73.70 58.92 70.99 75.91 75.91 79.71 54.68 54.68 54.68 57.42 54.68 70.96 79.92 72.67 66.07 72.49	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	78 15 61.93 74 59 79 75 79 75 83.74 57.46 57.46 60.32 57.46 75.31 83.93 76.30 69.38 76.12	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.00 78.31 83.72 83.72 87.91 60.30 60.30 63.31 60.30 60.30	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	68.23 82.24 87.92 87.92 92.31 63.29 63.29 66.46 63.29 63.29

Class 0 - Employees not eligible for certification pay.

Class 1 - Employees achieving professional certification higher than specified for current classification qualify for certification pa y per CLASS 1 salary schedule

^{*} Salary step "G" available only to Water Quality Specialists in Environmental Compliance Division as of 7/1/2013. Promotions to Snr Environmental Compliance Inspector limited to only one person in the position at any given time. The Water Quality Specialist classification not available to new hires after June 30, 2013.

^{**} There shall be only one person in the position of Senior Laboratory Analyst at any given time.

Silicon Valley Clean Water Negotiated Pay Scale Stationary Engineers Local 39

Fiscal Year: 2027-28
Cost-of-Living Adjustment 3.5%

General Represented Employees (hourly) Class 0 Positions	Codes		A0		B0		C0		D0		E0		F0		G0
Senior Operator	D130	\$	64.60	\$	67.84	\$	71.20	\$	74.77	\$	79.31	\$	82.45	\$	86.57
Operator	D400	s	51.64	\$	54.24	\$	56.91	s	59.79	s	62 83	\$	65.97	s	69.22
Senior Plant Mechanic	D200	\$	62.27	\$	65.40	\$	68.63	s	72.04	\$	75.69	\$	79.46	\$	83.46
Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician	D250	s	66.55	\$	69.88	\$		s	77.04	\$	80.93	\$	84.96	\$	89.21
Senior Instrumentation Technician	D230	Š	66.55	\$	69.88	š		š	77.04	Š	80.93	\$	84.96	š	89.21
Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician	D260	\$	69.87	\$	73.41	\$	77.05	\$	80.86	\$	84.97	\$	89.20	\$	93.67
Plant Mechanic	D450	\$	47.88	\$	50.29	s	52.83	\$	55.50	s	58.28	s	61.18	s	64.22
Plant Mechanic - Electrician	D460	\$	47.88	\$	50.29	\$		\$	55.50	\$	58.28	\$	61.18	\$	64.22
Instrumentation Technician	D440	\$	47.88	s	50.29	\$		s	55.50	s	58.28	\$	61.18	\$	64.22
Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician	D470	\$	50.28	\$	52.82	\$	55.46	s	58.26	s	61.22	\$	64.24	\$	67.43
Planner / Scheduler Assistant	D852	s	47.88	\$	50.29	s	52.83	s	55.50	s	58.28	s	61.18	s	64.22
Facilities Maintenance Technician	D870	\$	47.88	\$	50.29	\$		\$	55.50	\$	58.28	\$	61.18	\$	64.22
Water Quality Specialist *	D360	\$	60.23	\$	63.90	\$	67.88	s	71.97	\$	76.40	\$	81.09	\$	85.16
Senior Laboratory Analyst **	D305	s	70.07	s	73.57	s	77.24	s	81 09	s	85 16	•	01.03	•	03.10
Laboratory Analyst II	D303	s	63.70	\$		\$	70.22	-		\$	77.42				
Laboratory Analyst I	D301	s	57.91	\$	60.80	\$	63.84	s	67.04	\$	70.39		_		_
Senior Environmental Compliance Inspector *	D351	\$	63.55	\$	66.74	\$	70.07	\$	73.57	\$	77.24		-		_
Environmental Compliance Inspector	D353	\$	57.77	s	60.66	\$	63.70	\$	66.90	s	70.22				
Pollution Prevention Specialist	D355	\$	57.77	\$	60.66	\$	63.70	\$	66.90	\$	70.22				
Materials Specialist	D703	s	61.69	s	64.86	\$	68.17	s	71.51	s	75.08				
Utility Worker	D850	\$	44.33	\$	46.78	\$	49.33	\$	52.06	\$	54.91				
		•		•		•	10.00	•	02.00	•	0.0.				
•	1														
Class 1 Positions	Codes		A1		B1		C1		D1		E1		Ħ		G1
Class 1 Positions Senior Operator	D131	\$	65.91	\$	69.16	\$	C1 72.62	\$	76.28	\$	80.89	\$	84.10	\$	88.28
Senior Operator Operator	D131 D401	\$	65.91 52.67	\$	69.16 55.34	\$	72.62 58.04	\$	76.28 60.98	\$	80.89 64.10	\$	84.10 67.28	\$	88.28 70.62
Senior Operator	D131 D401 D201	\$ \$	65.91 52.67 63.50	\$ \$	69.16 55.34 66.72	\$ \$	72.62 58.04 70.02	\$	76.28 60.98 73.47	\$	80.89 64.10 77.20	\$	84.10 67.28 81.05	\$ \$	88.28 70.62 85.12
Senior Operator Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician	D131 D401 D201 D251	\$ \$	65.91 52.67 63.50 67.89	\$ \$	69.16 55.34 66.72 71.30	\$ \$	72.62 58.04 70.02 74.82	\$ \$ \$	76.28 60.98 73.47 78.57	\$ \$	80.89 64.10 77.20 82.54	\$ \$ \$	84.10 67.28 81.05 86.65	\$ \$	88.28 70.62 85.12 91.00
Senior Operator Operator Senior Plant Mechanic	D131 D401 D201 D251 D231	\$ \$ \$	65.91 52.67 63.50 67.89 67.89	\$ \$ \$	69.16 55.34 66.72 71.30 71.30	\$ \$ \$	72.62 58.04 70.02 74.82 74.82	\$ \$ \$	76.28 60.98 73.47 78.57 78.57	\$ \$ \$	80.89 64.10 77.20 82.54 82.54	\$ \$ \$ \$	84.10 67.28 81.05 86.65 86.65	\$ \$ \$	88.28 70.62 85.12 91.00 91.00
Senior Operator Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician	D131 D401 D201 D251 D231 D261	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.91 52.67 63.50 67.89 67.89 71.27	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	69.16 55.34 66.72 71.30 71.30 74.86	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	72.62 58.04 70.02 74.82 74.82 78.58	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	76.28 60.98 73.47 78.57 78.57 82.50	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	80.89 64.10 77.20 82.54 82.54 86.67	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	84.10 67.28 81.05 86.65	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	88.28 70.62 85.12 91.00 91.00 95.54
Senior Operator Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Instrumentation Technician	D131 D401 D201 D251 D231 D261 D451	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.91 52.67 63.50 67.89 67.89 71.27 48.84	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	69.16 55.34 66.72 71.30 71.30 74.86 51.30	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	72.62 58.04 70.02 74.82 74.82 78.58 53.87	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	76.28 60.98 73.47 78.57 78.57	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	80.89 64.10 77.20 82.54 82.54	\$ \$ \$ \$	84.10 67.28 81.05 86.65 86.65	\$ \$ \$	88.28 70.62 85.12 91.00 91.00
Senior Operator Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Instrumentation Technician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician	D131 D401 D201 D251 D231 D261	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.91 52.67 63.50 67.89 67.89 71.27	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	69.16 55.34 66.72 71.30 71.30 74.86 51.30	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	72.62 58.04 70.02 74.82 74.82 78.58 53.87	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	76.28 60.98 73.47 78.57 78.57 82.50	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	80.89 64.10 77.20 82.54 82.54 86.67	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	84.10 67.28 81.05 86.65 86.65 90.99	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	88.28 70.62 85.12 91.00 91.00 95.54
Senior Operator Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Instrumentation Technician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic	D131 D401 D201 D251 D231 D261 D451	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.91 52.67 63.50 67.89 67.89 71.27 48.84	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	69.16 55.34 66.72 71.30 71.30 74.86 51.30	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	72.62 58.04 70.02 74.82 74.82 78.58 53.87	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	76.28 60.98 73.47 78.57 78.57 82.50 56.59	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	80.89 64.10 77.20 82.54 82.54 86.67 59.47	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	84.10 67.28 81.05 86.65 86.65 90.99 62.41	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	88.28 70.62 85.12 91.00 91.00 95.54 65.51
Senior Operator Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Instrumentation Technician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic Plant Mechanic	D131 D401 D201 D251 D231 D261 D451 D461	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.91 52.67 63.50 67.89 67.89 71.27 48.84 48.84	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	69.16 55.34 66.72 71.30 71.30 74.86 51.30	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	72.62 58.04 70.02 74.82 74.82 78.58 53.87 53.87	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	76.28 60.98 73.47 78.57 78.57 82.50 56.59 56.59	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	80.89 64.10 77.20 82.54 82.54 86.67 59.47	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	84.10 67.28 81.05 86.65 86.65 90.99 62.41 62.41	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	88.28 70.62 85.12 91.00 91.00 95.54 65.51 65.51
Senior Operator Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Instrumentation Technician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician	D131 D401 D201 D251 D231 D261 D451 D461 D441	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.91 52.67 63.50 67.89 67.89 71.27 48.84 48.84	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	69.16 55.34 66.72 71.30 71.30 74.86 51.30 51.30 53.86 51.30	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	72.62 58.04 70.02 74.82 74.82 78.58 53.87 53.87 56.57 53.87	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	76.28 60.98 73.47 78.57 78.57 82.50 56.59 56.59	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	80.89 64.10 77.20 82.54 82.54 86.67 59.47 59.47	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	84.10 67.28 81.05 86.65 86.65 90.99 62.41 62.41	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	88.28 70.62 85.12 91.00 91.00 95.54 65.51 65.51
Senior Operator Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Instrumentation Technician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician	D131 D401 D201 D251 D251 D261 D451 D461 D441 D471	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.91 52.67 63.50 67.89 67.89 71.27 48.84 48.84 48.84 51.29	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	69.16 55.34 66.72 71.30 71.30 74.86 51.30 51.30 51.30 53.86	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	72.62 58.04 70.02 74.82 74.82 78.58 53.87 53.87 56.57	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	76.28 60.98 73.47 78.57 78.57 82.50 56.59 56.59 56.59	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	80.89 64.10 77.20 82.54 82.54 86.67 59.47 59.47 62.43	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	84.10 67.28 81.05 86.65 86.65 90.99 62.41 62.41 62.41 65.53	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	88.28 70.62 85.12 91.00 95.54 65.51 65.51 68.79
Senior Operator Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Instrumentation Technician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Focheduler Assistant	D131 D401 D201 D251 D251 D231 D261 D451 D461 D441 D471 D853	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.91 52.67 63.50 67.89 67.89 71.27 48.84 48.84 51.29 48.84	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	69.16 55.34 66.72 71.30 74.86 51.30 51.30 53.86 51.30 51.30 65.17	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	72.62 58.04 70.02 74.82 74.82 78.58 53.87 53.87 53.87 53.87 53.87 69.25	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	76.28 60.98 73.47 78.57 82.50 56.59 56.59 56.59 56.59 56.59 73.44	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	80.89 64.10 77.20 82.54 82.54 86.67 59.47 59.47 62.43	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	84.10 67.28 81.05 86.65 90.99 62.41 62.41 65.53 62.41	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	88.28 70.62 85.12 91.00 95.54 65.51 65.51 68.79 65.51
Senior Operator Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planter / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician	D131 D401 D201 D251 D231 D261 D451 D461 D471 D853 D871	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.91 52.67 63.50 67.89 67.89 71.27 48.84 48.84 51.29 48.84 48.84	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	69.16 55.34 66.72 71.30 74.86 51.30 51.30 53.86 51.30 51.30	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	72.62 58.04 70.02 74.82 74.82 78.58 53.87 53.87 53.87 53.87 53.87 69.25	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	76.28 60.98 73.47 78.57 82.50 56.59 56.59 56.59 56.59 56.59	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	80.89 64.10 77.20 82.54 82.54 86.67 59.47 59.47 62.43 59.47	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	84.10 67.28 81.05 86.65 86.65 90.99 62.41 62.41 65.53 62.41 62.41	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	88.28 70.62 85.12 91.00 91.00 95.54 65.51 65.51 68.79 65.51 65.51
Senior Operator Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planter / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist *	D131 D401 D201 D251 D231 D261 D451 D461 D441 D471 D853 D871 D361	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.91 52.67 63.50 67.89 67.89 71.27 48.84 48.84 51.29 48.84 48.84 61.44	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	69.16 55.34 66.72 71.30 74.86 51.30 51.30 53.86 51.30 51.30 65.17	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	72.62 58.04 70.02 74.82 74.82 78.58 53.87 53.87 53.87 53.87 53.87 69.25	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	76.28 60.98 73.47 78.57 82.50 56.59 56.59 56.59 56.59 56.59 73.44	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	80.89 64.10 77.20 82.54 82.54 86.67 59.47 59.47 62.43 59.47 77.95	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	84.10 67.28 81.05 86.65 86.65 90.99 62.41 62.41 65.53 62.41 62.41	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	88.28 70.62 85.12 91.00 91.00 95.54 65.51 65.51 68.79 65.51 65.51
Senior Operator Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist * Senior Laboratory Analyst **	D131 D401 D201 D251 D251 D261 D461 D461 D441 D471 D853 D871 D361 D306	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.91 52.67 63.50 67.89 67.89 71.27 48.84 48.84 51.29 48.84 48.84 61.44 71.48	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	69.16 55.34 66.72 71.30 74.86 51.30 51.30 51.30 51.30 65.17 75.03	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	72.62 58.04 70.02 74.82 78.58 53.87 53.87 56.57 53.87 69.25 78.78	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	76.28 60.98 73.47 78.57 78.57 82.50 56.59 56.59 56.59 56.59 73.44 82.72	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	80.89 64.10 77.20 82.54 82.54 86.67 59.47 59.47 62.43 59.47 77.95 86.87	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	84.10 67.28 81.05 86.65 86.65 90.99 62.41 62.41 65.53 62.41 62.41	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	88.28 70.62 85.12 91.00 91.00 95.54 65.51 65.51 68.79 65.51 65.51
Senior Operator Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planter / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist * Senior Laboratory Analyst !* Laboratory Analyst !!	D131 D401 D201 D251 D251 D261 D451 D461 D441 D471 D853 D871 D361 D306 D304	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.91 52.67 63.50 67.89 67.89 71.27 48.84 48.84 51.29 48.84 61.44 71.48 64.97	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	69.16 55.34 66.72 71.30 71.30 74.86 51.30 51.30 51.30 51.30 65.17 75.03 68.23	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	72.62 58.04 70.02 74.82 78.58 53.87 53.87 55.87 56.57 53.87 69.25 78.78 71.63	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	76.28 60.98 73.47 78.57 78.57 82.50 56.59 56.59 56.59 56.59 73.44 82.72 75.21	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	80.89 64.10 77.20 82.54 82.54 86.67 59.47 59.47 62.43 59.47 77.95 86.87 78.97	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	84.10 67.28 81.05 86.65 86.65 90.99 62.41 62.41 65.53 62.41 62.41	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	88.28 70.62 85.12 91.00 91.00 95.54 65.51 65.51 68.79 65.51 65.51
Senior Operator Operator Senior Plant Mechanic - Bectrician Senior Plant Mechanic - Bectrician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Planter / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist * Senior Laboratory Analyst !! Laboratory Analyst !!	D131 D401 D201 D251 D251 D261 D451 D461 D471 D853 D871 D361 D306 D304 D302	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.91 52.67 63.50 67.89 67.89 71.27 48.84 48.84 51.29 48.84 61.44 71.48 64.97 59.07	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	69.16 55.34 66.72 71.30 71.30 74.86 51.30 51.30 53.86 51.30 65.17 75.03 68.23 62.04	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	72.62 58.04 70.02 74.82 78.58 53.87 53.87 56.57 53.87 69.25 78.78 71.63 65.12	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	76.28 60.98 73.47 78.57 78.57 82.50 56.59 56.59 56.59 56.59 73.44 82.72 75.21 68.38	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	80.89 64.10 77.20 82.54 86.67 59.47 59.47 62.43 59.47 77.95 86.87 78.97 71.81	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	84.10 67.28 81.05 86.65 86.65 90.99 62.41 62.41 65.53 62.41 62.41	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	88.28 70.62 85.12 91.00 91.00 95.54 65.51 65.51 68.79 65.51 65.51
Senior Operator Operator Senior Plant Mechanic Senior Plant Mechanic - Electrician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Senior Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Electrician Instrumentation Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plant Mechanic - Control Systems Technician Plantner / Scheduler Assistant Facilities Maintenance Technician Water Quality Specialist * Senior Laboratory Analyst II Laboratory Analyst II Senior Environmental Compliance Inspector *	D131 D401 D201 D251 D251 D261 D451 D461 D471 D853 D871 D361 D306 D304 D302 D352	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	65.91 52.67 63.50 67.89 67.89 71.27 48.84 48.84 51.29 48.84 61.44 71.48 64.97 59.07 64.80	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	69.16 55.34 66.72 71.30 71.30 74.86 51.30 51.30 53.86 51.30 65.17 75.03 68.23 62.04 68.06	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	72.62 58.04 70.02 74.82 78.58 53.87 53.87 56.57 53.87 69.25 78.78 71.63 65.12 71.48	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	76.28 60.98 73.47 78.57 78.57 82.50 56.59 56.59 56.59 56.59 73.44 82.72 75.21 68.38 75.03	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	80.89 64.10 77.20 82.54 86.67 59.47 59.47 62.43 59.47 77.95 86.87 78.97 71.81 78.78	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	84.10 67.28 81.05 86.65 86.65 90.99 62.41 62.41 65.53 62.41 62.41	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	88.28 70.62 85.12 91.00 91.00 95.54 65.51 65.51 68.79 65.51 65.51

Class 0 - Employees not eligible for certification pay.

Utility Worker

Class 1 - Employees achieving professional certification higher than specified for current classification qualify for certification pa y per CLASS 1 salary schedule

D851 \$ 45.22 \$ 47.70 \$ 50.33 \$ 53.10 \$ 56.02

^{*} Salary step "G" available only to Water Quality Specialists in Environmental Compliance Division as of 7/1/2013. Promotions to Snr Environmental Compliance Inspector limited to only one person in the position at any given time. The Water Quality Specialist classification not available to new hires after June 30, 2013.

^{**} There shall be only one person in the position of Senior Laboratory Analyst at any given time.